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Dear Sir/Madam, ‘
Attached hereto are the financial statements of the company for the six
months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002 with report of independent auditors in it
for your file.
If you have any question, please feel free to contact the undersigned.
(886-2-2509-3660ext 301 or gracehsieh@evergreen.com.t\';/)
PROCESSED |
Very truly yours,
NOV 06 2003 Uy
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Grace Shu-Hui Hsieh
Stock Department
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EVERGREEN MARINE CORPORATION (TAIWAN) LTD.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WITH
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED
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The reader is advised that these financial statements have been prepared originally
in Chinese. In the event of a conflict between these financial statements and the
original Chinese version or difference in interpretation between the two versions,

the Chinese language financial statements shall prevail.
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English Translation of a Report Originally Issued in Chinese

Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Evergreen Marine Corporation (Taiwan) Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Evergreen Marine Corporation (Taiwan) Ltd. as of
June 30, 2003 and 2002, and the related statements of income, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash
flows for the six months then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We did not audit the financial statements of all of the investee companies accounted for under the equity
method. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our
opinion expressed herein, insofar as it related to amounts included for those investee companies accounted
for under equity method are based solely on the reports of other auditors. Those statements reflect
long-term investments of 29,892,220 New Taiwan thousand doliars and 29,152,526 New Taiwan thousand
dollars, constituting 43.82% and 48.31% of the total assets as of June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively, and
reflect revenues of 1,711,345 New Taiwan thousand dollars and 467,926 New Taiwan thousand dollars for
the six months then ended respectively.

Except as discussed in the following paragraph, we conducted our audits in accordance with “Regulations for
Auditing and Certification of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants” and auditing standards
generally accepted in the Republic of China on Taiwan. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note D7 to the financial statements, the amount of the long-term equity investment in
Charng Yang Development Co., Ltd. accounted for under the equity method was 333,442 New Taiwan
thousand dollars as of June 30, 2002, constituting 0.55% of the total assets. The investment income
recognized for the six months ended June 30, 2002 was 14,207 New Taiwan thousand dollars which was
based on the unaudited financial statements prepared by the investee company.




In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the adjustments that may be made to the Company’s
financial statements for the six months ended June 30, 2002 should the financial statements discussed in the
preceding paragraph have been audited, based on our audits and the reports of other auditors, the financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Evergreen
Marine Corporation (Taiwan) Ltd. as of June 30, 2003 and 2002, and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the six months then ended in conformity with “Guidelines for Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers” and accounting principles generally accepted in the Republic of China on Taiwan.

August 8, 2003
Taipei, Taiwan
The Republic of China on Taiwan

Notice to Readers
The accompanying financial statements are intended only to present the financial position and results of operations and
cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China on
Taiwan and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such financial
statements are those generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China on Taiwan.
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Re: The information required by Rule 12g3-2(b)
from Evergreen Marine Corporation
(Taiwan) Ltd. (* the Company )

Dear Sir / Madam,

Attached hereto is the English version that the Company had published,
filed or distributed from April 1, 2003 to September 30, 2003 for your file.

If you have any question, please feel free to contact the undersigned.
- (886-2-2509-3660ext 301 or gracehsich@evergreen.com.tw)

Very truly yours,

Erace Shuv-Hui Hsieh

Stock Department

lFORM Np. GAD-026-01




EVERGREEN MARINE CORPORATION (TAIWAN) LTD.

List of Information Referred to in Paragraph (b)(1)(I) of Rule 12g3-2(b)
under the United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
Published, Filed or Distributed from April 1, 2003 to September 30, 2003

1.Press release or notices

A. Announcement of certain significant matters (summary English version as
attachment 1-A)

B. Announcement of capital increase, issuance of new shares and new global
depositary receipts (summary English version as attachment 1-B)

2.Reports released publicly on the website: http://mops.tse.com.tw

A. Monthly operation statements from April of 2003 to September of 2003 (brief
English description as attachment 2-A)

B. Monthly reports on changes in shareholding and creation and release of pledge of
common shares held by directors, supervisors, managers and 10% Shareholders
from April of 2003 to September of 2003 (brief English description as attachment
2-B)



Attachment 1- A .

Announcement of Certain Significant Matters of
Evergreen Marine Corporation (Taiwan) Ltd.

(Brief English Description)

1.Date: April 2, 2003

To announce the acquisition of new-built containers from Evergreen Heavy Industrial
Corp. (Malaysia) Berhad in total amount of USD13,675,000.

2.Date: April 2, 2003

To announce the acquisition of new-built containers from Shanghai Pao Long
International Container Co., Ltd. in total amount of USD11,912,400.

3.Date: April 28, 2003

To announce the acquisition of new-built containers from China International Marine
Containers (Group) Co., Ltd. in total amount of USD11,898,000.

4.Date: April 30, 2003

To announce the issuing plan of the 11" secured Corporate Bond in amount of
NTD1,500,000,000.

5.Date: June 5, 2003

To announce the acquisition of newly issued unsecured convertible bond of EVA
Airways Corporation in total amount of NTD500,000,000.

6.Date: June 25, 2003

To announce the issuing plan of the 1% unsecured convertible bond in amount of
NTD4,000,000,000.

7.Date: July 17, 2003
To announce the financial forecast of the Company for the year 2003.

8.Date: September 2, 2003

To announce of appointing Mr. Chen, Hsien-Hung to replace Mr. Lin, Fu-Chiao as
chief of internal auditors from September 2, 2003.




Attachment 1- B

Announcement of Capital Increase, Issuance of New Shares and
New Global Depositary Receipts of
Evergreen Marine Corporation (Taiwan) Ltd.
(Summary English Version)

An issuance project of 42,095,643 new common shares of capitalization from
retained earnings made by Evergreen Marine Corporation (Taiwan) Ltd. (the
“Company”) was approved by the Securities and Futures Commission of Republic of
China (“ROC”) on July 14, 2003. And registration of capital increase of the Company
was approved by the Ministry of Economic Affairs of R.O.C. on September 9, 2003.

New share certificates certified by the Trust Department of United World
Chinese Commercial Bank have been respectively delivered to each shareholders of the
Company by registered mail or by book-entry system of the Taiwan Securities Central
Depositary Co. Ltd. and traded on October 8, 2003.

For the issuance of new shares mentioned above, 48,199 new Global Depositary
Receipts backed by 481,995 shares have been issued and traded on October 15, 2003.




Attachment 2-A

Monthly Operation Statements of
Evergreen Marine Corporation (Taiwan) Ltd.

(Brief English Description)

1.Statements of operation for April 2003 (publicly announced on the website:
http://mops.tse.com.tw)

Date: May 9, 2003

Net operating revenue: NTD 3,205,610,000

Amount of Endorsements/Guarantees: NTD 42,229,272,000
Balance of Third-Party Loan: NTD 1,565,438,000

2.Statements of operation for May 2003 (publicly announced on the website:
http://mops.tse.com.tw)

Date: June 10, 2003

Net operating revenue: NTD 2,359,176,000

Amount of Endorsements/Guarantees: NTD 42,843,401,000
Balance of Third-Party Loan: NTD 1,420,548,000

3.Statements of operation for June 2003 (publicly announced on the website:
http://mops.tse.com.tw)

Date: July 10, 2003

Net operating revenue: NTD 3,051,773,000

Amount of Endorsements/Guarantees: NTD 43,117,268,000
Balance of Third-Party Loan: NTD 0

4.Statements of operation for July 2003 (publicly announced on the website:
http://mops.tse.com.tw)

Date: August 8, 2003

Net operating revenue: NTD 3,256,807,000

Amount of Endorsements/Guarantees: NTD 44,707,946,000
Balance of Third-Party Loan: NTD 0




5.Statements of operation for August 2003 (publicly announced on the website:
http://mops.tse.com.tw)

Date: September 10, 2003

Net operating revenue: NTD 3,359,196,000

Amount of Endorsements/Guarantees: NTD 45,587,443,000
Balance of Third-Party Loan: NTD 0

6.Statements of operation for September 2003 (publicly announced on the website:
http://mops.tse.com.tw)

Date: October 9, 2003

Net operating revenue: NTD 3,000,233,000

Amount of Endorsements/Guarantees: NTD 46,685,229,000
Balance of Third-Party Loan: NTD 0




Attachment 2-B : .

Monthly Report on changes in Shareholding and Creation
and Release of Pledge of Common Shares Held by
Directors, Supervisors, Managers and 109 Shareholders of
Evergreen Marine Corporation (Taiwan) Ltd.

(Brief English Description)

1.Table of changes in the shareholding and pledged shares held by directors,
supervisors, managers and major shareholders for April 2003. (Publicly announced
on the website: http://mops.tse.com.tw)

Date: May 15, 2003

No. of Shares Balance of

No. of Shares Pledged Balance of
. Held Pledged
Title Name . Held Shares for .
Preceding . . Shares for This
This Month Preceding
Month Month
Month
Chairman & - Shivan-Yu 448,295 448,295 0 0
Director
Director Chang, Yung-Fa 148,889,416 | 148,889,416 0 0
Director Chang, Kuo-Hua 187,536,083 187,536,083 0 0
Director | Laicon Investment |5 538 605 | 105238 602 0 0
Services Ltd.
Director Chang, Ming-Bo 538,036 538,036 0 0
Total 442,650,432 442,650,432
Supervisor | faiconlnvestment |5 530 605 | 105238 602 0 0

Services Ltd.
Supervisor  Evergreen Int'1S.A.| 263,916,221 = 263,916,221 251,205,237 251,205,237

Total 369,154,823 | 369,154,823
President Wang, Long-Shung 25,547 25,547 0 0

Executive Vice| ¢ Shiun-Kwo 62,061 62,061 0 0
President

Executl_ve Vice Chen, Hau-Gi 14314 14,314 0 0
President _

Executive Vice Chen, Jinn-Shyon 22,216 22,216 0 0
President

Executive Vice Owng, Rong-Jong 3,762 3,762 0 0

President




|

~ Balance of |
No. of Shares No. of Shares Pledged Balance of
. Held Pledged
Title Name . Held Shares for )
Preceding : . Shares for This
This Month Preceding
Month Month
Month
Executive Vice: ¢ o Yuan 0 0 0 0
President
Executive Vice |y qpuii Tien 14,011 14,011 0 0
President
Senior Vice ) ) )
President Shiung, Ming-Tai 0 0 0 0
Senior Vice |1 £ Chiao 15,410 15,410 0 0
President
Senior Vice .
President Peng, Chen-Hsiang 9,564 9,564 0 0
Senior Vice .
President | Wang, Chung-Jinn 2,099 2,099 0 0
Senior Vice | pih 1in-An 29,000 29,000 0 0
President
Senior Vice .
President Tang, Chia-Shen 0 0 0 0
Semior Vice | o Chih-Hung 1311 1311 0 0
President
Senior Vice o
President Pu, Wei-Ping 0 0 0 0
Senior Vice | | Kian-Chuan 59.197 59.197 0 0
President
Senior Vice | p1ieh Huey-Chuan 19,762 19,762 0 0
President
Senior Vice || 1 Wen-Kuei 679 2,679 0 0
President
Senior Vice | pro Ta-Chung 30,962 30,962 0 0
President
Major '
Evergreen Int'1 S A.| 263,916,221 263,916,221 | 251,205,237 251,205,237
Shareholder |

Minimum on number of shares held by all Directors — 105,239,105 shares

Minimum on number of shares held by all Supervisors — 10,523,910 shares

Whether percentage of shareholding this month by Directors and Supervisors meets
statutory requirement ? Yes.

2. Table of changes in the shareholding and pledged shares held by directors,
supervisors, managers and major shareholders for May 2003. (Publicly announced on
the website: http://mops.tse.com.tw)




Date: June 13, 2003

Balance of

No. of Shares No. of Shares Pledged Balance of
. Held Pledged
Title Name i Held Shares for .
Preceding . . Shares for This
This Month Preceding
Month Month
Month
Chairman & 1 Shivan-Yu 448295 448 295 0 0
Director
Director Chang, Yung-Fa 148,889,416 1 148,889,416 0 0
Director Chang, Kuo-Hua 187,536,083 | 187,536,083 0 0
Director | T aicon Investment o5 53¢ 05 105238 602 0 0
Services Ltd.
Director Chang, Ming-Bo 538,036 538,036 0 0
Total 442,650,432 . 442,650,432
Supervisor | T aicon Investment | 5 39 605 105 238,602 0 0
Services Ltd.
Supervisor  Evergreen Int'l S. A, 263,916,221 | 263,916,221 251,205,237 251,205,237
Total 369,154,823 1 369,154,823
President | Wang, Long-Shung 25,547 25,547 0 0
Executive Vice| 1 0o Shiun-Kwo 62,061 62,061 0 0
President
Executive Vice o 1au-Gi 14314 14314 0 0
President
Executive Vice )
. Chen, Jinn-Shyon 22,216 22216 0 0
President
Executive Vice 010 Rong-Jon 3,762 3.762 0 0
President & g g g ’
Executive Vice | g1 ho-Yuan 0 0 0 0
President
Executive Vice | ||| qpi-Tien 14,011 14,011 0 0
President 7
Senior Vice . ) )
President Shiung, Ming-Tai 0 0 0 0
Senior Vice | 11 £ Chiao 15,410 15.410 0 0
President
Senior Vice .
President Peng, Chen-Hsiang 9.564 9.564 0 0
Semior VICe | yuuno . Chung-Jinn 2,099 2,099 0 0

President




. Balance of
' No. of Shares No. of Shares | Pledged Balance of
. Held Pledged
Title Name . Held Shares for .
Preceding . ) Shares for This
This Month Preceding
Month Month
Month
Senior Vice | pyrioh Lin-An 32,000 32,000 0 0
President
Senior Vice | .1 o Chia-Shen 0 0 0 0
President g
Senior VIce o oh Chih-Hung 1311 1311 0 0
President
Senior Vice .
President Pu, Wei-Ping 0 0 0 0
Semior VICe |y ian-Chuan 59,197 59,197 0 0
President
Senior Vice | pih Huey-Chuan 19,762 19,762 0 0
President
Senior Vice | o Wwen-Kuei 2,679 2,679 0 0
President
Senior Vice | o Ta-Chung 30,962 30,962 0 0
President
Major ,
Evergreen Int'l1 S.A. 263916221 263,916,221 | 251,205,237 251,205,237
Shareholder | | | ;

Minimum on number of shares held by all Directors — 105,239,105 shares

Minimum on number of shares held by all Supervisors — 10,523,910 shares

Whether percentage of shareholding this month by Directors and Supervisors meets
statutory requirement ? Yes.

3.Table of changes in the shareholding and pledged shares held by directors,
supervisors, managers and major shareholders for June 2003. (Publicly announced on
the website: http://mops.tse.com.tw)

Date: July 15, 2003

| Balance of
No. of Shares No. of Shares Pledged Balance of
. Held Pledged
Title Name i Held Shares for .
Preceding : . Shares for This
This Month Preceding
Month Month
Month
i . ,
Chairman & 0 gpivan- vy 448295 448295 0 0
Director
Director Chang, Yung-Fa 148,889,416 1 148,889,416 0 0




| Balance of
No. of Shares No. of Shares Pledged Balance of
. Held Pledged
Title Name . Held Shares for i
Preceding . : Shares for This
This Month Preceding
Month Month
Month
Director Chang, Kuo-Hua 187,536,083 | 187,536,083 0 0
Director | | Acon Investment | s 53¢ ¢55 1 105238602 0 0
Services Ltd.
Director Chang, Ming-Bo 538,036 538,036 0 0
Total 442,650.432 442,650,432
Supervisor | T aicon Investment |5 538 605 105238 602 0 0
Services Ltd.
Supervisor | Evergreen Intl S.A. | 263916221 | 263916221 251205237 251205237
Total 369,154,823 369,154,823
President | Wang, Long-Shung 25,547 25,547 0 0
Executive Vice| p7 o no Shiun-Kwo 62,061 62,061 0 0
President
Executive Vice | o0 1an.Gi 14314 14314 0 0
President
Executive Vice )
. Chen, Jinn-Shyon 22216 22216 0 0
President
Executive Vice, 00 Rone-Jon 3.762 3.762 0 0
President & g g ? ’
Executive Vice | gpop Cho-Yuan 0 0 0 0
President
Executive Vice |} qpi-Tien 14,011 14,011 0 0
President
Senior Vice | ¢pno Ming-Tai 0 0 0 0
President & g
Semior Vice || . £l Chiao 15,410 15,410 0 0
President
Senior Vice )
President Peng, Chen-Hsiang 9.564 9.564 0 0
Senior Vice i
President Wang, Chung-Jinn 2,099 2,099 0 0
Senior Vice | prioh in-An 32.000 32,000 0 0
President
Senior Vice | 1. 1o Chia-Shen 0 0 0 0
President ? |
Senior Vice o Chih-Hung 1311 1311 0 0
President
Semor Vice | b \ei Ping 0 0 0 0

President
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Balance of
No. of Shares No. of Shares Pledged Balance of
. Held Pledged
Title Name . . Held Shares for i
Preceding . ) Shares for This
This Month Preceding
Month Month
Month
Senior Vice | | | Kian-Chuan 59,197 59,197 0 0
President
Senior Vice | proioh Huey-Chuan 19,762 19,762 0 0
President
Senior VICe | . wen Kuei 2,679 2,679 0 0
President
Senior Vice | o o Chung 30,962 30.962 0 0
President
Major ,
Evergreen Int'l1 S.A. . 263,916,221 @ 263,916,221 251,205,237 . 251,205,237
Shareholder

Minimum on number of shares held by all Directors — 105,239,105 shares

Minimum on number of shares held by all Supervisors — 10,523,910 shares

Whether percentage of shareholding this month by Directors and Supervisors meets
statutory requirement ?  Yes.

4.Table of changes in the shareholding and pledged shares held by directors,
supervisors, managers and major shareholders for July 2003. (Publicly announced on
the website: http://mops.tse.com.tw)

Date: August 15, 2003

Balance of
No. of Shares No. of Shares Pledged Balance of
. Held Pledged
Title Name . Held Shares for )
Preceding . ) Shares for This
This Month Preceding
Month Month
] Month i
Chairman & 1y Shivan-Yu 448,295 448,295 0 0
Director
Director Chang, Yung-Fa 148,889,416 148,889,416 0 0
Director Chang, Kuo-Hua 187,536,083 | 187,536,083 0 0
Director | T alcon Investment | s 53¢ 605 1 105238,602 0 0
Services Ltd.
Director Chang, Ming-Bo 538,036 538,036 0 0
Total 442,650,432 1 442,650,432
Supervisor | FaiconInvestment |45 550 ¢4 0 0

Services Ltd.

105,238,602




| Balance of
No. of Shares No. of Shares Pledged Balance of
. Held Pledged
Title Name i Held Shares for )
Preceding . . Shares for This
This Month Preceding
Month Month
Month
Supervisor | Evergreen Int1S.A. 263,916,221 | 263,916,221 | 251,205,237 | 251,205,237
Total 369,154,823 369,154,823
President | Wang, Long-Shung 25,547 25,547 0 0
Executive Vice | 1y o Shiun-Kwo 62,061 62,061 0 0
President
Executive Vice | o o 1au-Gi 14,314 14314 0 0
President
Executive Vice .
; Chen, Jinn-Shyon 22,216 22,216 0 0
President .
Executive Vice
President Owng, Rong-Jong 3,762 3,762 0 0
Executive Vice| ¢ cho-Yuan 0 0 0 0
President
Executive Vice | 1. qpui Tien 14,011 14,011 0 0
President
Executive VICe 1 2no Ching-Yun 3,075 3,075 0 0
President ? ’ ’
Senior Vice | ghiung, Ming-Tai 0 0 0 0
President & &
Senior Vice |y o0 b\ Chiao 15,410 15.410 0 0
President :
Senior Vice .
President Peng, Chen-Hsiang 9,564 9,564 0 0
Senior Vice .
President Wang, Chung-Jinn 2,099 2,099 0 0
Senior Vice | pyoioh Lin-An 32,000 32.000 0 0
President
Senior Vice )
President Tang, Chia-Shen 0 0 0 0
Senior Vice | pen Chih-Hung 1311 1311 0 0
President
Senior Vice .
President Pu, Wei-Ping 0 0 0 0
Senior Vice |y | Kian-Chuan 59,197 59,197 0 0
President
- Senior Vice | yieh Huey-Chuan 19,762 19,762 0 0
President » »
Senior Vice |y o wen Kuei 2,679 0 0

President

13
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W
Balance of
No. of Shares No. of Shares Pledged Balance of
. Held Pledged
Title Name . Held Shares for )
Preceding : ) Shares for This
This Month Preceding
Month Month
Month
Senior Vice |y Ta-Chung 30,962 30,962 0 0
President
Senior Vice .
President Yang, Shyan-Ming 3,123 3,123 0 0
Semior Viee | ¢, Wen-Ben 63 63 0 0
President
Senior Vice
President Wang, Bao-Gen 361 361 0 0
Senior Vice
Prosident Fang, Yu-Yen 6,445 6,445 0 0
Senior Vice )
President Chang, Pen-Chi 0 0 0 0
Senior Vice . i
President Tsai, [-Jung 0 0 0 0
Senior Vice
President Chang, Cheng-Yung 0 0 0 | 0
Major g oreen Intl S.A. | 263016221 | 263916221 251205237 251205237
Shareholder | ;

Minimum on number of shares held by all Directors — 105,239,105 shares

Minimum on number of shares held by all Supervisors — 10,523,910 shares

Whether percentage of shareholding this month by Directors and Supervisors meets

statutory requirement ? Yes.

5.Table of changes in the shareholding and pledged shares held by directors,
supervisors, managers and major shareholders for August 2003. (Publicly announced
on the website: http://mops.tse.com.tw)

Date: September 12, 2003

i

Balance of
| No. of Shares ' No. of Shares Pledged Balance of
. Held | Pledged
Title Name . Held Shares for )
Preceding : . Shares for This
This Month Preceding
Month Month
Month
Chairman & 1 Shinan-Yu 448 295 457.260 0 0
Director
Director Chang, Yung-Fa 148,889,416 151,917,721 0 0

14




Balance of
No. of Shares No. of Shares Pledged Balance of
. Held Pledged
Title Name ) Held Shares for )
Preceding . . Shares for This
This Month Preceding
Month Month
Month
Director Chang, Kuo-Hua 187,536,083 ' 191,286,804 0 0
Director | Lalcon Investment | 5 530 c05 107343374 0 0
Services Ltd.
Director Chang, Ming-Bo 538,036 548,796 0 0
Total 442,650,432 1 451,553,955
) Falcon Investment
Supervisor ) 105,238,602 | 107,343,374 0 0
Services Ltd.
Supervisor  Evergreen Int'l S.A.| 263,916,221 . 269,194,545 | 251,205,237 1 251,205,237
Total 369,154,823 376,537,919
President | Wang, Long-Shung 25,547 26,057 0 0
Executive Vice| 1 1o Shiun-Kwo 62,061 63,302 0 0
President
Executive Vice| o 11a1.Gi 14314 14,600 0 0
President
Executive Vice )
) Chen, Jinn-Shyon 22216 22.660 0 0
President
Executive Vice| o Rong-Jon 3.762 3.837 0 0
President & & g ’ ’
Executive Vice . cpo-Yuan 0 0 0 0
President
Executive Vice 1 i Tien 14,011 14,291 0 0
President
Executive Vice .
President Huang, Ching-Yun 3,075 3,136 0 0
Senior Vice . ) )
President Shiung, Ming-Tai 0 0 0 0
Semior Vice y o0 £ Chiao 15,410 15,718 0 0
President
Senior Vice | o Chen-Hsian 9.564 9.755 0 0
President & & ? ’
Senior Vice )
President Wang, Chung-Jinn 2,099 2,140 0 0
Semior Vice | i 1in-An 29,000 29,580 0 0
President
Senior Vice o Chib-Hung 1311 1337 0 0
President
Senior Vice | p | \wei_Ping 0 0 0 0

President
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No. of Shares

Balance of

No. of Shares Pledged Balance of
. Held Pledged
Title Name ] Held Shares for i
Preceding . . Shares for This
This Month Preceding
Month Month
Month
Senior Vice |y K ian-Chuan 59,197 60,380 0 0
President
Senior Vice |y ieh Huey-Chuan 19,762 20,157 0 0
President
Senior Vice | 110 \Wen-Kuei 2,679 2,732 0 0
President
Senior Vice | 1o Ta-Chung 30,962 31,581 0 0
President
Senior Vice | )
President Yang, Shyan-Ming 3,123 3,185 0 0
Semor Vice Kuo, Wen-Ben 63 64 0 0
President
Senior Vice | 0 Bao-Gen 361 368 0 0
President &
Senior Vice | g e Yu-Yen 6,445 6,573 0 0
President
Senior Vice )
President Chang, Pen-Chi 0 0 0 0
Senior Vice )
President Tsai, I-Jung 0 0 0 0
Senior Vice | 1o Cheng-Yun 0 0 0 0
President g g g
Senior Vice
President Chang, Cheng-Yen 107,720 107,720 0 0
Major ' |
Evergreen Int'l1 S.A. | 263,916,221 | 269,194,545 251,205,237 . 251,205,237
Shareholder | E t :

Minimum on number of shares held by all Directors — 107,343,887 shares

Minimum on number of shares held by all Supervisors — 10,734,388 shares

Whether percentage of shareholding this month by Directors and Supervisors meets
statutory requirement 7 Yes.

6.Table of changes in the shareholding and pledged shares held by directors,
supervisors, managers and major shareholders for September 2003. (Publicly
announced on the website: http://mops.tse.com.tw)
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No. of Shares Balance of Balance of
No. of Shares Pledged
: Held Pledged
Title Name . Held Shares for )
Preceding . . Shares for This
This Month Preceding
Month Month
Month
Chairman & |0 Shivan-Yu 457,260 457260 0 0
Director
Director Chang, Yung-Fa 151,917,721 | 151,917,721 0 0
Director Chang, Kuo-Hua 191,286,804 | 191,286,804 0 0
Director | Faicon Investment |5 343 374 107,343 374 0 0
Services Ltd.
Director Chang, Ming-Bo 548,796 548,796 0 0
Total 451,553,955 | 451,553,955
Supervisor | L alcon Investment |5 343 3941 107343 374 0 0
Services Ltd.
Supervisor | Evergreen Int'1 S.A. 269,194,545 | 269,194,545 251,205,237 251,205,237
Total 376,537,919 376,537,919
President | Wang, Long-Shung 26,057 26,057 0 0
Executive Vice pp 0o Shiun-Kwo | 63,302 63.302 0 0
President
Executive Vice :
) Chen, Jinn-Shyon 22,660 22,660 0 0
President
Executive Vice
President Owng, Rong-Jong 3,837 3,837 0 0
Executive Vice | g1 cho-Yuan 0 0 0 0
President
Executive Vice| |\ qp i Tien 14291 14,291 0 0
President
Executive Vice .
President ) Huang, Ching-Yun 3,136 3,136 0 0
Senior VIce | gpiung. Ming-Tai 0 0 0 0
President & &
Senior Vice . |
President Peng, Chen-Hsiang 9,755 9,755 0 0
Senior Vice )
President Wang, Chung-Jinn 2,140 2.140 0 0
Senior Vice | preioh 1in-An 29,580 29,580 0 0
President
Semior Vice |y o Chih-Hung 1337 1337 0 0
President
Senior Vice | b \wei-Ping 0 0 0 0

President




18

Balance of
No. of Shares No. of Shares Pledged Balance of
. Held Pledged
Title Name ! Held Shares for .
Preceding : : Shares for This
This Month Preceding
Month Month
.......... - Month
Senior Vice | gian-Chuan 60,380 60,380 0 0
President
Senior VICe | Huey-Chuan 20,157 20,157 0 0
President
Senior Vice | o wen Kuei 2,732 2,732 0 0
President ?
Senior Vice |y Ta-Chung 31,581 31,581 0 0
President
Senior Vice .
President Yang, Shyan-Ming 3,185 3,185 0 0
Semo_r Vice Kuo, Wen-Ben 64 64 0 0
President
Senior Vice | w10 Bao-Gen 368 368 0 0
President &
Semior Vice | kb0 Yu-Yen 6.573 6,573 0 0
President :
Senior Vice | 1o Pen-Chi 0 0 0 0
President &
Senior Vice ) :
President Tsai, [-Jung 0 0 0 0
Senior Vice 1o Cheng-Yun 0 0 0 0
President & g g
Senior Vice | o o Heien-Hung | 0 0 0 0
President ’
Major ,
Evergreen Int'1 S.A. | 269,194,545 269,194,545 251,205,237 | 251,205,237
Shareholder !

Minimum on number of shares held by all Directors — 107,343,887 shares

Minimum on number of shares held by all Supervisors — 10,734,388 shares

Whether percentage of shareholding this month by Directors and Supervisors meets
statutory requirement ? Yes.
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STATEMENTS OF INCOME
For The Six Months Ended June 30, 2003 and 2002

(Expressed in New Taiwan Thousand Dollars except for Earnings Per Share)

January 1 to June January 1 to June

30, 2003 30, 2002
OPERATING REVENUES (Note B & D18 & E) $16,293,360 $6,866,400
OPERATING COSTS (Note D19 & E) (16,344,157) (5,796,663)
GROSS (LOSS) PROFIT (50,797) 1,069,737
OPERATING EXPENSES (Note D19 & E) (1,239,084) (1,414,491)
OPERATING LOSS (1,289,881) (344,754)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES AND INCOME
Interest income (Note E) 44,332 34,439
Investment income recognized under the equity method 1,859,135 509,927
Dividends Income 25,556 29,056
Gain on disposal of assets (Note E) 402 -
Gain on disposal of investments 9,457 18,830
Rent income (Note E) 28,520 20,708
Gain on market price recovery of short-term investment (Note B) 47,172 -
Other income 106,853 33,447
Total non-operating revenues and income 2,121,427 646,407
NON-OPERATING EXPENSES AND LOSS
Interest expenses (559,202) (549,964)
Other investment loss - (19,575)
Loss on disposal of assets (7.469) (1,370)
Foreign exchange loss (Note B) (39,955) (162,482)
Financial expenses (32,077 (27,868)
Other expenses (833) (15,697)
Total non-operating expenses and loss (639,536) (776,956)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 192,010 (475,303)
INCOME TAX BENEFITS (Note B & D20) 36,328 98,249
NET INCOME (LOSS) $228,338 $(377,054)
BASIC EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE (AFTER
RETROACTIVE ADJUSTMENT) (in NT $) (Note B& D21)
Income (Loss) before income tax $0.09 $(0.22)
Net income (loss) $0.11 $(0.18)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

(Please refer to Diwan, Emst & Young independent auditors' report dated August 8, 2003)
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English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese
EVERGREEN MARINE CORPORATION (TAIWAN) LTD.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For The Six Months Ended June 30, 2003 and 2002

(Expressed in New Taiwan Thousand Dollars)

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash used in operating activities:

Depreciation

Amortization

Depreciation of dock facilities attribute to operating costs
Amortization of deferred charges transferred to others
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Investment income under the equity method over cash dividends

Gain on disposal of investments

(Recovery from) Loss on decline in value of short-term investments

Decrease in short-term investments
Decrease (Increase) in notes and accounts receivable
Decrease (Increase) in other receivables
Decrease (Increase) in inventories
Decrease (Increase) in prepayments
Net increase in agent accounts
Increase in agency reciprocal accounts
Decrease in restricted assets
(Increase) Decrease in other current assets
Decrease (Increase) in refundable deposits
Decrease in notes and accounts payable
Increase (Decrease) in income taxes payable
(Decrease) Increase in accrued expenses
Decrease (Increase) in other payables
Increase (Decrease) in accrued pension liabilities
Increase (Decrease) in guarantee deposit received
Changes on net deferred income tax assets and liabilities
Net cash used in operating activities
NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of long-term investments
Proceeds from disposal of long-term investments
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Increase in deferred charges
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Increase in short-term loans
(Decrease) Increase in short-term bills payable
(Decrease) Increase in corporate bonds payable
Increase (decrease) in long-term bank loans
Decrease in other long-term borrowings
(Decrease) Increase in restricted assets
Bonuses for employees
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the period
Supplemental disclosures of cash flows information:
Cash paid during the period for interests
Less:capitalized interests

Cash paid during the period for interests without capitalized interests

Cash paid during the period for Income taxes

The financing activities which would not affect cash flows:
Long-term liabilities payable due within one year
Stock dividends to be distributed

January 1 to June 30,

January ! to June 30,

2003 2002
$228,338 $(377,054)
992,589 1,256,451
27,480 6,319
91,444 84,917
14,794 29,916
7,067 1,370
(1,831,635) (370,913)
(9.457) (18,830)
(47,172) 19,575
1,848,186 685,476
1,219,912 (103,617)
937,273 (541,894)
8,750 (47,991)
5,240 (10,313)
(1,595,990) (897,712)
(5.029) (14,761)
2,809 39,891
(17,188) 26,469
591 (2.319)
(820,172) (97.717)
22,015 (79.452)
(1,586,697) 115,622
(41,904) (207,091)
7436 (2.331)
24 (61)
(116,564) (98,249)
(657.860) (604,299)
(502,192) (2,130,034)
48,043 .
(385,279) (194,561)
1,136,616 g
{42,614) (32.737)
254,574 (2,357,321)
490,165 371,200
(900,067) 590,391
(1,000,000) 1,550,000
3,449,886 (1,230,369)
(2,492,053) (485,628)
(331,991) 29,938
- (40,000)
(784,060) 785,532
(1,187,346) (2,176,088)
2,760,168 3,398,837
$1,572,822 $1,222,749
$585,896 $472,807
$585,896 $472.807
$1,071 $1.437
$2.919,519 $5.519,826
$420,956 $613,043

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

(Please refer to Diwan, Emst &Y oung independent auditors' report dated August 8, 2003)







Enelish Translation of Financial Statements Onieinally Issued in Chinese

EVERGREEN MARINE CORPORATION (TAIWAN) LTD.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2003 and 2002

(Amounts are expressed in New Taiwan thousand dollars unless otherwise stated.)

A. INTRODUCTION

_l\)

. Established on September 25, 1968, Evergreen Marine Corporation (Taiwan) Ltd. (the

“Company”) is mainly engaged in domestic and international marine transportation,

shipping agency services and distribution of containers.

The Company was approved by the Securities and Futures Commission (SFC), Ministry of
Finance (MOF), to be a public company on November 2, 1982 and was further approved by
the SEC to be a listed company on July 6, 1987. The Company’s shares have been publicly
traded on the Taiwan Stock Exchange since September 21, 1987. The Company had 1,412
and 1,152 employees as of June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

B. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements are prepared in conformity with the “Guidelines for Preparation of

Financial Reports by Securities Issuers “ and the ROC GAAP. The significant accounting

polices are summarized below.

L.

o

Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities

Current assets consist of cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments and other assets
which are expected to be converted into cash, sold, or consumed within one year from the
balance sheet date. Current liabilities consist payables, loans and other liabilities which, in
the normal course of business, are to be paid back by current assets or other current

liabilities within one year from the balance sheet date.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are cash, unrestricted bank deposits and other highly liquid

1nvestments.




3. Short-term investments

Marketable securities are recorded at cost when acquired and are revalued by the lower of
cost or market value method at the balance sheet date. The market value for listed equity
securities is determined by the average closing prices occurred during the last month of the
financial year. The market values for foreign stocks and domestic open-ended funds are
determined by their closing prices and the net worth per share at the balance sheet date,

respectively. Any loss on declines in market value is recorded as current non-operating loss.

4. Allowance for doubtful accounts

The allowance for doubtful accounts is provided based on the collectibility and aging

analysis of notes and accounts receivable and other receivables.

5. Inventories
Fuel inventories are physically measured by the crew of each ship and reported back to the
Head Office through telegraph for recording purpose at year-end. Valuation of inventories

is based on the exchange rate prevailing at the end of the financial year.

6. Long-term equity investments

(1) Long-term equity investments are stated at historical cost and revalued at the end of the
financial year. For the investee companies in which the Company holds less than 20% of
the voting shares or over which the Company cannot exercise significant influence, the
lower of cost or market value method is applied if the investees are listed compantes.
The unrealized loss resulting from the decline in market value of such investments is
charged to stockholders’ equity. If the investees are unlisted companies, the cost
method is applied. When the loss in investment value is permanent and the possibility of
a recovery in value is remote, the book value is adjusted and an investment loss is

recognized accordingly.

(2) The equity method is applied where the Company holds more than 20% of the voting
shares and can exercise significant influence over the investees. The difference between
the investment cost and the stocks’ net worth is amortized over five years on a straight-
line basis. Any unrealized loss arising from the transactions between the Company and

the invetees is eliminated.

(3) Foreign cumrency denominated financial statements of overseas subsidiaries and




investees are translated into New Taiwan dollars in accordance with the Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No.14, “Accounting for Foreign Currency Transactions
and Translation of Foreign Financial Statements”. The translation differences are

recorded as “cumulative translation adjustments” under stockholders’ equity.

(4) For the investee companies of which the Company holds more than 50% of the voting
shares, the equity method is applied and the accounts of those investess are required to
be consolidated into those of the Company. However, consolidation is not required when
the investee’s individual total assets or total operating revenues are less than 10% of the
Company’s respective unconsolidated amounts. Where the combined total assets or total
operating revenues of all the investees not meeting the above consolidation requirement
exceed 30% of the Company’s respective unconsolidated amounts, consolidation is also
mandatory for the investees whose individual total assets or total operating revenues
exceed 3% of the Company’s respective unconsolidated amounts unless the percentage
falls below 20% in the future. In addition, according to the*Guidelines for Preparation of
Financial Reports by Securities Issuers “, interim consolidated financial statements can

be exempted.

7. Propertyv, plant and equipment

(1) Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost plus capitalized interest. Expenditures
incurred on major improvements or renewals that will increase the efficiency or prolong
the useful life of fixed assets are capitalized. Other expenditures related to regular
maintenance and repairs are treated as expenses. Gains or losses on disposal of fixed
assets are credited to non-operating income or charged to non-operating losses in the

year of disposal.

(2) Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis according to the respective fixed

assets’ useful life regulated by the Authority plus one year for residual value.

(3) For ships and equipment that are still in use after expiration of their useful life, provision
for depreciation is made based on the original method after reassessing the useful life
and the residual value. For other fixed assets that are still in use after expiration of
their useful life, provision for depreciation is made based on the original method until
the residual value falls below $3,000.

8. Deferred charges

Deferred charges refer to the expenses incurred on the use of container yards, issuance of
corporate bonds, computer software and cable installation. The charges are amortized on a
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straight-line basis over seven years for the use of container yards and the issuing period for
corporate bond issuance with the rest being amortized over 2~3 years.

9. Estimation of accrued expenses at the end of the financial vear

(1) Accrued expenses are recorded in accordance with the amounts supported by the original
documents. In the absence of original documents, foreign port charges are estimated as
per past records and year-end sailing schedules.

(2) Differences between the expenses actually incurred in the following year and the
estimated accrued expenses are credited or charged to operating costs or expenses in the
following year.

10. Pension plans

(1) The pension plans apply to all permanent employees. For the first fifteen years of service,
two points are rewarded for each year of service. For service period exceeding 15 years,
one point is rewarded for each year of service with a maximum of 45 points allowed.
‘Pensions paid upon retirement are based on the service period and the average monthly
salary of the six months prior to the approval of retirement. The Company’s staff
retirement and relief scheme was revised several times and was approved by the Taipei
City Govermment. The main purpose of the revision is to allow the employees
transferred to related companies to apply for pensions as retired employees.

(2) Pursuant to the letter (91) Fu-Lao-2-Tze 09132271100 issued by the Taipei City
Government on May 22, 2002 and the letter (91) Cai-Pei-Kuo-Shui-Shen-1-Tze
091003376 issued by the National Tax Administration (NTA) of Taipei on May 31, 2002,
the Company had revised the appropriation rate for pension reserve from 10.76% of the
total monthly salary to 8.25% since March 2002. In addition, pursuant to the letter (92)
Bei-Shi-Lao-2-Tze 09232103200 issued by the Taipei City Government and the letter
(92) Cai-Pei-Kuo-Shui-Shen-1-Tze 0920046375 1ssued by the NTA of Taipei on May 13,
2003, the Company revised the appropriation rate for pension reserve from 8.25% of the
total monthly salary to 9.6% starting from April 2003. The pension fund is deposited
with the Central Trust of China in an exclusive account.

(3) In accordance with the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.18, “Accounting
for Pensions”, pension costs have been recognized based on the actuarial report since
1995. When preparing the interim financial statements, the minimum pension liability is
not reassessed and only the net pension costs and the appropriated amount for the
pension fund are adjusted based on the ending balance of prior period’s minimum
pension liability. Additionally, in accordance with the Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No.23, “Interim Financial Reporting and Disclosures”, information on
pensions 1s not disclosed in the interim financial reports.

11. Revenue recognition

Recognition of revenues is accounted for in accordance with the Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No.32, “Accounting for Revenue Recognition”™.
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12. Income tax

(1) Income tax is estimated based on the taxable income for the current year. Difference
between the estimated tax and the actual tax paid is recorded as an adjustment to income
tax for the current year. An additional 10% tax is levied on unappropriated retained
earnings, which is recorded as income tax expense for the year when the tax is levied.

(2) Inter-period and intra-period income taxes are allocated in accordance with the
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.22, “Accounting for Income Taxes”.
Income tax effects arising from taxable temporary differences are recognized as deferred
income tax liabilities. Income tax effects arising from deductible temporary differences,
loss carryforwards and income tax credits are recognized as deferred income tax assets
and a valuation allowance is provided based on the expected realizability of the deferred
income tax assets.

(3) Income tax credits are accounted for in accordance with the Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No.12, “Accounting for Income Tax Credits”. Tax credits are
recognized in the year when the related expenditures are incurred.

13. Basic earnings per share

14.

15.

Basic earmnings per share are calculated based on the net income (loss) attributed to common
stockholders and the weighted average number of outstanding shares of common stock
during the period. Any capital increase (reduction) through cash injection (withdrawal),
treasury stock transactions or other factors that would cause a change in the number of
outstanding shares all incorporated in the calculation on a weighted average basis according
to the circulation period. Adjustments are made retroactively to the weighted average
number of outstanding shares if there are any increase (decrease) in the number of
outstanding shares which does not result in changes in the stockholders’ percentage of
equity interest.

Foreien currency transactions

Transactions are recorded in New Taiwan dollars. Transactions denominated in foreign
currencies are converted into New Taiwan dollars at the exchange rate prevailing on the
transaction date. Foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities are assessed at the
balance sheet date based on the spot rate on that date. Unrealized gains / loss on foreign
currency exchange are recorded as current gains/loss or as adjustment items under
stockholders’ equity in accordance with the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No.14, “Accounting for Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation of Foreign Financial
Statements”.

Dernivative financial instruments

(1) For foreign exchange forward contracts which hedge the exchange rate risk arising from
foreign currency denominated liabilities, the difference between the spot rate and the
contract rate is recorded as current exchange gain / loss. For those used for hedging
exchange rate risk arising from foreign operating branches’ net investments, the
exchange difference is recorded as cumulative translation adjustment under
stockholders’ equity.
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(2) For interest rate swap contracts entered into for hedging against fluctuations in interest
rates, the resulting difference is credited or charged to the current interest expense.

(3) The difference resulting from the oil swap contracts used for hedging against
fluctuations in oil prices is credited or charged to the current fuel expense.

C. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

None.

D. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTS

1. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash

June 30, 2003

June 30, 2002

$25,389 $11,878
Demand deposits 92.530 327.844
Checking account deposits 120,870 298,964
Foreign currency deposits 380,836 163,280
Time deposits (New Taiwan dollars) 15,250 70,000
Time deposits (foreign currencies) 919,126 317,758
Cash equivalents 11,627 -
Plus: Unrealized gain on foreign currency 7,194 33,025

exchange

Total $1,572,822 $1,222.,749

. Short-term investments (net)

June 30, 2003

June 30, 2002

Equity securities $107,980 $238,582
Notes and bills 17,415 -
Mutual funds 122,382 1,043,856
Government bonds 81,888 105,240
Corporate bonds 8,800 25,613
Subtotal 338,465 1,413,291
Less: Allowance for reduction of short-term (15.421) (48.983)
investment to market
Net $323,044 $1,364,308

The above short-term investments were not pledged as of June 30, 2003 and 2002.
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Non-related parties

June 30, 2003

3. Accounts receivable (net)
June 30, 2003 June 30,2002
Non-related parties $2,375,378 $1,994,594
Less: Unrealized loss on foreign currency (7.962) (31333)
exchange
Allowance for doubtful accounts (1,560) (1,897)
Subtotal 2,365,856 1,961,364
Related parties 254 362 21,659
Net $2,620,218 $1,983,023
4. Other receivables

June 30,2002

Accrued income $42.243 $47.871
Tax refund recetvable 63,630 27,380
Others 930,786 567,182
Less: Unrealized loss on foreign currency (1,660) (41,378)
exchange
Subtotal 1,034,999 601,055
Related parties
Agency accounts receivable 3,145 49,181
Accrued income 309,877 144,688
Others 1,207,758 1,368,627
Less: itfi::d loss on foreign currency (3.717) )
Subtotal 1,517,063 1,562,496
Total $2,552,062 $2,163,551

Please refer to Note E3 for details of the Company’s financing activities with related parties.
5. Inventories

June 30, 2003 June 30, 2002

Fuel inventories $410,605 $231,627
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6. Other current assets

- June 30, 2003 June 30, 2002
Agenct accounts $7,806,551 $5,249,983
Agency reciprocal accounts 30,118 25,408
Temporary debits 68,261 63,082
Total $7,904,930 $5,338,473

(1) Agency accounts:

The Company has signed contracts with foreign agents to deal with the port formalities
related to foreign ports such as arrival and departure of ships, cargo loading, discharging
and forwarding, collection of freight and payment of expenses incurred with foreign
ports. The above transactions are booked in the agency accounts.

(2) Agency reciprocal accounts:

The Company has been appointed by Evergreen International S. A., Greencompass
Marine S.A., Lloyd Triestino Di Navigazione S.P.A. and Hatsu Marine Limited as their
agent to pay the petty cash required by their vessels, crew salaries and insurance
premiums in Taiwan. The above transactions are booked in the agency reciprocal

accounts.

7. Long-term investments

June 30,2003 June 30, 2002
Long-term equity investments $40,168,742 $34,318,515
Long-term bond investments 500,000 -
Other long-term investments 312 312
Total $40,669,054 $34,318,827
(1) Long-term equity investments:
June 30, 2003 June 30, 2002
Percentage of Percentage of
Amount ownership (%) Amount ownership (%)
Equity method:
Peony Investment S. A. $21,392.,475 100.00 $17,053,643 100.00
Taiwan Terminal Services Co., Ltd. 75,767 55.00 86,947 55.00
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Uniglory Marine Corporation - - 4,694,550 48.08
Chamg Yang Development Co., Ltd. 353,821 40.00 333,442 40.00
Evergreen International Storage &
7,207,957 39.74 2,062,817 31.03
Transport Corp.
Evergreen Security Co., Ltd 28,475 1.25 22,626 31.25
EVA Airways Corporation 8,117,449 24.86 7,381,706 2533
Ever Reward Logistic Corporation - - 5.444 20.00
Subtotal 37,175,944 31,641,175
Cost method:
Dongbu Pusan Container Terminal _
40,041 15.00 40,041 15.00
Co., L.
Power World Fund Inc. 50,000 5.68 50,000 5.68
Fubon Securities Finance Co., Ltd. 209,725 493 299,725 4.93
Fubon Securities Investment Trust
- - 14,700 3.88
Co., Ltd.
Taiwan HSR Consortium 1,250,000 2.53 1,250,000 2.53
Linden Technologies Inc. 15,372 2.53 15,372 2.53
Taiwan Fixed Network Corp. 1,000,000 1.08 1,000,000 1.08
Well Long Information Co., Ltd: 1,300 0.14 1,300 0.14
Subtotal 2,656,438 2,671,138
Lower of cost or market value
method:
Central Reinsurance Corp. 325,782 9.29 6,202 0.20
Fubon Financial Holding Co., Ltd. 10,578 0.05 - -
Less: Allowance for excess of cost - - - -
over market value of long-term
investments
Subtotal 336,360 6,202
Total $40,168,742 $34,318,515

@ The financial statements of the above investees accounted for under the equity
method were audited by other auditors for the corresponding periods except Charng
Yang Development Co., Ltd. The investment income for the six months ended June 30,
2003 and 2002 was $1,859,135 thousand and $509,927 thousand, respectively.

@ Evergreen Container Terminal Corporation (EGCT) and Uniglory Marine Corporation
(UGMC), the investees accounted for under the equity method, were merged with
Evergreen International Storage and Transport Corporation (EITC) in March and
November, 2002, respectively, with EITC being the surviving entity. The investment
cost transferred to EITC’s book was based on the book values of the two companies on
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the effective merger dates. The Company’s equity stake in EITC after the merger
increases to 39.74%, which is still accounted for by the equity method.

® The Company sold out all equity shares of Ever Reward Logistic Corporation to
EITC in February, 2003. Please refer to Note E2.

@ 300,000 shares of Dongbu Pusan Container Terminal Co. Ltd. (DPCT), an investee
accounted for under the cost method, were pledged by the Company as collaterals for

DPCT’s borrowings. Please refer to Note F for details.

(2) Long-term bond investments:

Item Period Interest rate  June 30, 2003 June 30, 2002
at par value
Convertible bonds - Jun. 6, 2003~ 0% $500,000 $-
EVA Jun. 5, 2008

On June 5, 2003, the Company’s Board of Directors resolved to purchase the domestic
unsecured convertible bonds issued by EVA Airways totally $500 million (face value).
The convertible bonds were listed on the OTC market on June 10, 2003. As the
investments in the above convertible bonds are held for long-term purposes, they are
recorded under Jong-term bond investments and are accounted for by the lower of cost or

market value method. Please refer to Note E2 for details.
(3) Other long-term investments:

The other long-term investments refer to the membership fee and service charges paid
to Marshal Golf Country Club and are accounted for by cost method.

8. Propertv, plant and equipment {(net)

June 30, 2003

Accumulated
Cost depreciation Balance
Land $1,998,859 $- $1,998,859
Buildings 1,355,934 283,761 1,072,173
Loading / discharging equipment 3,061,957 1,679,471 1,382,486
Computer equipment 200,617 135,503 65,114
Transportation equipment 16,322,461 12,189,587 4,132,874
Ships & equipment 9,877,935 8,767,038 1,110,897
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Dock facilities

Office equipment

Subtotal

Prepayments for equipment
Total

Land

Buildings and structures
Loading / discharging
equipment

Computer equipment
Transportation equipment
Ships & equipment

Dock facilities

Office equipment
Subtotal

Prepayments for equipment

Total

1,000,442 - 1,000,442
177,156 133,210 43,946
33,995,361 23,188,570 10,806,791
3,106 - 3,106
$33,998,467 $23,188,570 $10.809,897

June 30, 2002

Accumulated

Cost depreciation Balance

$1,998,859 $- $1,998,859
1,355,934 256,355 1,099,579
3,092,631 1,318,772 1,773,859
158,840 114,210 44,630
13,886,529 10,951,719 2,934,810
16,905,665 13,395,799 3,509,866
1,160,384 - 1,160,384
226,327 172,284 54,043
38,785,169 26,209,139 12,576,030
6,223 - 6,223
$38,791,392 $26,209,139 $12,582,253

(1) Please refer to Note E2 and G for details of the fixed asset transactions and commitments
with related parties. Please refer to Note F for details of the fixed assets pledged as

collaterals.

(2) All the aforementioned ships and equipment have been insured based on the market value of
The total insured amount as of June

each vessel or the requirement of the lending banks.
30, 2003 and 2002 was US$80 million and US$225 million, respectively.

In addition, the

ships were also covered under the protection and indemnity insurance with GARD. The
indemnity amount was unlimited except for oil pollution which was limited to US$1 billion

as of June 30, 2003 and 2002.

(3) The Company’s loading / discharging equipment has been covered with the general

insurance for construction machinery with an insured amount of $1,142,303 thousand and
$1,364,776 thousand as of June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The fire insurance
coverage for office equipment was $1,088,644 thousand and $1,615,201 thousand as of June
30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Container facilities were insured with full coverage for
US$406,730 thousand and US$386,518 thousand as of June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

(4) The Company signed a construction contract with Kaohsiung Harbor Bureau to complete the
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10.

extension project of Pier No.116 of Kaohsiung Harbor. The Company is entitled to use the
pier free of charge for 16 years commencing from the date of completion. At expiration of
the 16-year period, the Company is obliged to return the pier to the Bureau but has the
priority to lease the pier. The construction project was completed on January 1, 1992 and
was booked as dock facilities which are depreciated on a straight-line basis over 16 years
with charges to loading / discharging expenses.

(5) The Company signed a construction contract with Kaohsiung Harbor Bureau to complete the

extension project of Pier No.79~81 of Kaohsiung Harbor. The Company is entitled to use
the pier free of charge for 10 years commencing from the date of completion. At expiration
of the 10-year period, the Company is obliged to return the pier to the Bureau but has the
priority to lease the pier. The construction project was completed in the beginning of 2000
and was booked as dock facilities which are depreciated on a straight-line basis over 10

years with charges to loading / discharging expenses.

Short-term loans

June 30, 2003 June 30, 2002
Interest Interest
Item rate(%) Amount rate(%) Amount
New Taiwan dollars 1.60~2.10 $2,050,000 2.30~4.25 $1,051,000
Foreign currencies 1.79~2.09 208,445 2.53~2.569 685,000
Less: Unrealized gain on foreign currency (1,280) (13,800)
exchange
Total $2,257,165 $1,722,200

The above short-term loans were all credit loans and were not secured with collaterals.

Short-term bills pavable

June 30, 2003:

Guarantors Period Amount
Commercial papers payable:
International Bills Finance Corp. Jun.24.2003~ Jul.08.2003 $300,000
Chung Hsing Bills Finance Corp. Jun.27.2003~ Jul.18.2003 100,000
Chung Hsing Bills Finance Corp. Jun.06.2003~ Jul.17.2003 350,000
Taiwan Bills Finance Corp. - Jun.10.2003~ Jul.10.2003 200,000
Dah Chung Bills Finance Corp. Jun.19.2003~ Jul.03.2003 200,000
Total 1,150,000
Less: Unamortized discounts on commercial papers (356)
Net $1,149,644
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11.

12.

June 30, 2002:

Guarantors Period Amount
Commercial papers payable:
Taiwan Bills Finance Corp. Jun.27.2002~ Jul.11.2002 $200,000
E. Sun Bills Finance Corp. Jun.27.2002~ Jul.04.2002 50,000
Fubon Bills Finance Corp. Jun.27.2002~ Jul.04.2002 50,000
International Bills Finance Corp. Jun.12.2002~ Jul.03.2002 550,000
Chung Hsing Bills Finance Corp. Jun.26.2002~ Jul.03.2002 500,000
Total - 1,350,000
Less:Unamortized discounts on commercial papers (212)
Net $1.349,788

(1) The above commercial papers were not secured with collaterals.

(2) The interest rate range on the above commercial papers was

2.15%~2.60% for six months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Accrued expenses

Accrued expenses

Estimated accrued expenses

Less: Unrealized gain on foreign
currency exchange

Total

1.50%~1.55% and

June 30, 2003 June 30, 2002
$269,987 $454.680
1,531,812 1,651,902

(2,475) (24.921)
$1,799,324 $2,081,661

The estimated accrued expenses refer to the estimation of the expenses to be incurred with the
foreign agents and on the agency services rendered by the Company to the foreign marine
transportation companies. The estimated accrued expenses as of December 31, 2002 were
$3,075,337 thousand. As of June 30, 2003, $3,061,242 thousand had been reversed, equal to
99.54% of the total amount. The estimated accrued expenses as of December 31, 2001 were
$1,508,359 thousand which was $1,819 thousand short, compared to the actual expenses
incurred for 2002. The difference was recorded as an addition to the operating costs for 2002.

Long-term liabilities — current portion

Corporate bonds payable
Long-term bank loans
Other long-term borrowings
Total
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$720,000 $2,500,000
2,199,519 1,224,524
- 1,795,302
$2,919,519 $5,519,826




13. Corporate bonds pavable

June 30, 2003 June 30, 2002
Fourth unsecured corporate bonds $- $1,300,000
Fourth secured corporate bonds - 1,200,000
Fifth unsecured corporate bonds 720,000 720,000
Sixth secured corporate bonds 2,500,000 2,500,000
Seventh secured corporate bonds 1,500,000 1,500,000
Eighth secured corporate bonds 1,500,000 1,500,000
Ninth secured corporate bonds 1,000,000 1,000,000
Tenth secured corporate bonds 1,500,000 1,500,000
Eleventh secured corporate bonds 1,500,000 -
Subtotal 10,220,000 11,220,000
Less: Due within one year (720,000) (2,500,000)
Net $9,500,000 $8,720,000

Please refer to Tables 1 ~ 4 for details of the terms on the above corporate bonds.

14. Long-term loans pavable

June 30, 2003 June 30, 2002
Long-term bank loans $9.644,662 $3.472,487
Other long-term borrowings . -
Total $9,644,622 $3.,472,487

(1) Long-term bank loans:

June 30, 2003 June 30, 2002

Creditors Type Period Amount Amount
Bank of Taiwan Secured Dec. 23.1998~Dec. 23.2002 3- $37,500
Bank of Taiwan Secured Dec. 29.1999~Feb. 23.2004 112,500 225,000
Bank of Taiwan Secured Oct. 20.1998~0Oct. 20.2005 1,000,000 1,400,000
Bank of Taiwan Secured Tun. 28.2000~Feb. 06.2004 - 133,333
Bank of Taiwan Secured Jun. 24.2002~Jun. 24.2003 - 500,000
Bank of Taiwan Secured Dec. 17.2002~Aug. 6.2007 400,000 -
Bank of Taiwan Secured Mar. 07.2003~Aug. 6.2007 392,000 -
Chiao Tung Bank Secured Dec. 15.1995~ Dec.15.2002 - 3,546
Chiao Tung Bank Secured Apr. 21.1998~ Apr. 21.2005 113,800 170,700
Chiao Tung Bank Secured Jan. 31.2000~ Jan. 31.2007 290,880 363,600
Chiao Tung Bank Secured Tun. 26.2001~ Mar. 01.2008 363,600 400,000
The Sanwa Bank Secured Nov. 30.2000~Nov. 30.2002 - 50,000
The Bank of Secured Sep. 01.2000~Feb. 28.2003 165,832 165,832
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Tokyo-Mitsubishi

The Mizuho Corporate Bank  Secured Sep. 30.2002~Mar. 31.2007
The Mizuho Corporate Bank  Secured Nov. 29.2002~Mar. 31.2007
The Mizuho Corporate Bank  Secured Mar, 31.2003~Mar. 31.2007
Taiwan Cooperative Bank Secured Jun. 24.2003~Jun. 24.2008
The Export-Import Bank of ~ Unsecured Aug. 27.2002~Jun. 27.2007
the Republic of China

Bank of Overseas Chinese Unsecured  Nov. 28.2003~Nov. 28.2005
Bank of Taiwan Unsecured May 27.2002~May 27.2007
Bank of East Asia Unsecured Feb. 27.2003~Feb. 27.2006
Credit Lyonnais Unsecured Jun. 06.2003~Jun. 06.2008
Sunny Bank Unsecured ~ Nov. 28.2002~Nov. 28.2005
Bank of Pan Shin Unsecured Sep. 03.2002~Sep. 03.2005
Chang Hwa Bank Unsecured Dec. 16.2002~Dec. 16.2007
International Bank of Taiepi  Unsecured Mar. 15.2002~Mar. 15.2006
Land Bank of Taiwan Unsecured Dec. 19.2002~Dec. 19.2007
First Bank Unsecured Jun. 27.2003~Jun. 27.2008

Hua Nan Commercial Bank Unsecured Jul. 23.2002~Jul. 23.2007
Subtotal

Add: Unrealized loss on

foreign currency exchange

Total

Less: Due within one year

Net

698,800
295,885
225,940
600,000
360,000

150,000

1,000,000

300,000
500,000
190,000
149,000
345,000
150,000

1,000,000
2,500,000

500,000

1,000,000

200,000

11,803,237

40,944

4,649,511
47,500

11,844,181
(2,199,519)

4,697,011
(1,224,524)

$9.,644,662

$3,472,487

@OThe interest rate range on the above long-term bank loans was 1.790%~6.000% and
2.750%~6.225% for six months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

@ Please refer to Note F for details of the collaterals pledged for the above long-term loans.

2

Other long-term borrowings:

* Guarantor June 30, 2003

June 30, 2002

Note issuance facilities (NIF):

Taishin International Bank

International Commercial Bank of China
Bank of Taiwan

Chang Hwa Commercial Bank

Taipet Bank

Hua Nan Commercial Bank

Bank of Overseas Chinese
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$144,000
324,000
252,000
252,000
252,000
144,000
144,000



Cathay United Bank - 144,000

Industrial Bank of Taiwan - 144,000
Subtotal 3- $1,800,000
Less: Unamortized discounts on NIF - (4,698)
Subtotal - 1,795,302
Less: Due within one year - (1,795,302)
Net $- $-

The above note 1ssuance facilities are the medium- and long-term credit lines granted by the
financial institutions. The Company can issue notes and bills within the credit limits on a
revolving basis. The interests range was 2.109%~2.305% during the six months through
June 30, 2002.

15. Capital stock

(1) As of June 30, 2002, the authorized capital of the Company was $21 billion and the paid-up
capital was $20,434,778 thousand, divided into 2,043,478 thousand shares of common
stocks with a par value $10 per share.

(2) On June 21, 2002, the stockholders passed a resolution to increase capital through
capitalization of retained eamings and 61,304 thousand of new shares were issued
accordingly, which totaled at $613,043 thousand with a par value of $10 per share. The
Company’s capital stock after the capital increase amounted to $21,047,821 thousand. The
above capital increase was approved by the Securities and Futures Commission (SFC),
Ministry of Finance (MOF) on July 9, 2002 as per letter of (91) Tai-Tasi-Chen
No0.0910137735 with the effective date of the capital increase set on August 6, 2002.

(3) As of June 30, 2003, the authorized capital of the Company was $21,180 million and the
paid-up capital was $21,047,821 thousand, divided into 2,104,782 thousand shares of
common stock with a par value $10 per share.

(4) On June 20, 2003, the stockholders passed a resolution to increase capital through
capitalization of retained earnings and 42,096 thousand of new shares were issued
accordingly, which totaled at $420,956 thousand with a par value of $10 per share. The
Company’s capital stock after the capital increase amounted to $21,468,777 thousand. The
above capital increase was approved by the SFC on July 14, 2003 as per letter of (92)
Tai-Tasi-Chen No0.0920131469 with the effective date of the capital increase set on August
12, 2003.




16. Capital surplus

(1) Under the Company Law, capital surplus arising from share issue premium and endowments
received by the company can be capitalized when companies do not incur losses but the
annual amount capitalized cannot exceed 10% of the company’s paid-in capital. The
remainder can only be used to offset against losses. Additionally, pursuant to the Securities
and Exchange Law and the Company Law, capitalization of the capital surplus is not
allowed until the following year after the capital surplus is registered. Moreover, companies
are not allowed to use the capital surplus to make up the losses, unless the legal reserve is
insufficient to cover the loss.

(2) On June 21, 2002, the stockholders resolved to transfer the capital surplus of $12,719

thousand arising from gains on disposal of assets in and prior to 2000 to retained earnings.

17. Appropriation of retained eamnines and dividend policy

(1) According to Article 26 of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, if there is any profit for
a fiscal year, the Company should first make provision for income tax, and make up the
losses from prior years, then. appropriate 10% of the residual amount as legal reserve.
Dividends should be proposed by the Board of Directors and resolved by the stockholders.
Bonuses to employees should not be less than 1% and the remuneration to the directors and

supervisors should not be more than 5% of the residual profit.
(2) Legal reserve:

Pursuant to the Company Law, the Company is required to set aside 10% of the annual net
income as legal reserve until the amount of such reserve equals to the Company’s paid-up
capital. The legal reserve can only be used to offset against losses or increase capital, and
cannot be distributed as dividends.

(3) Special reserve:

If there are any negative stockholders’ equity items recorded by the Company during the
year, such as unrealized losses on declines in market value of long-term equity investments
and cumulative translation adjustments, the Company is required to set aside a special
reserve from the current net income after tax with an amount equal to the total amount of the
negative items. If the above negative items are reversed in the future, the reversed portion is

allowed to be appropriated as eamings.

(4) As per the letter of (82) Tai-Tasi-Chen No0.27614 issued by the Securities Exchange
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Commission (SEC), Ministry of Finance, the acquisition cost of the building on Ming-Shen
East Road, Taipei, which was purchased on June 30, 1992 from the related party, Evergreen
Investment Corporation (merged with Evergreen Intemational Corporation on September 23,
1992), was overstated by $1,470,133 thousand, compared to the price assessed according to
the “principle for valuation of assets acquired under unusual transactions” set by the SEC.
The overstated amount was retained as special reserve in accordance with Section 1, Article

41 of the Securities and Exchange Law.

(5) The Company is currently at the stable growth stage. To facilitate future expansion plans,
dividends distributed to stockholders are in the form of both cash and stocks with the
proportions set at 0~50% and 100~50%, respectively. To maintain the Company’s earnings
per share at a certain level and in consideration of the impact of stock dividends on the
Company’s financial performance, the proporfions of cash and stock dividends would be
adjusted to 100%~50% and 0~50%, respectively, if the estimated earnings per share for the
year in which the dividends are distributed decrease by more than 20%, compared to the

prior year.

(6) Appropriation of 2002’s and 2001’s earnings as resolved by the stockholders is set forth
below on June 20, 2003 and June 21, 2002, respectively.

Appropriated Amount
2002 2001
Legal reserve $119,482 $170,704
Cash dividends for common stock 420,956 613,043
Stock dividends for common stock 420,956 613,043
Cash bonus to employees 40,000 40,000
Cash dividends per share (in dollars) $0.20 $0.30
Stock dividends per share (in dollars) 0.20 0.30
Estimated earnings per share after
distribution of employees bonus 0.49 0.77
(in dollars)
18. Operating revenues
January 1 to June 30, January 1 to June 30,

2003 2002
Marine freight income $15,361,029 $6,011,407
Ship rental income 803,692 687,037
Commission income 63,587 97,308
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Agency service income - 15,442
Others 65,052 55,206

Total $16,293,360 $6,866,400

19. Expenses relating to emplovment. depreciation. depletion and amortization

Expenses relating to employment, depreciation, depletion and amortization for the six months
ended June 30, 2003 and 2002 disclosed by function are as follows:

January 1 to June 30, 2003

Operating Operating
Costs Expenses Total

Employment

Salaries and wages $287.,321 $222.232 $509,553

Labor and health 12,645 21,230 33,875

Insurance

Pension 23,048 31,532 54,580

Others _ 20,275 22,783 43,058

Total $343.289 $297,777 $641,066
Depreciation $404,994 $679,039 $1,084,033
Amortization $- $27,480 $27,480

January 1 to June 30, 2002
Operating Operating
Costs Expenses Total

Employment

Salaries and wages $214,133 $313,327 $527,460

Labor and health 6,545 22,349 28,894

insurance

Pension . 14,286 26,417 40,703

Others 12,214 19,485 31,699

Total $247,178 $381,578 $628,756
Depreciation $498,565 $842.803 $1,341,368
Amortization $- $6,319 $6,319
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20. Income tax

(1) The income tax comprises the following:

Income tax expense — current period
Less: Withholding tax
Tax refund receivable
Add: Withholding tax
Income tax assessed for tax-exempt ships in
1990
Adjustments for changes in tax estimates
Net change in deferred income tax liabilities and assets

Income tax benefits

(2) Deferred income tax assets and liabilities:

(a) Total deferred income tax liabilities

(b) Total deferred income tax assets

(c) Deferred income tax assets and liabilities arising
from temporary differences:

Investment income accounted for by the equity
method

Unrealized exchange gain
Unrealized exchange loss
Pension cost

Investment tax credit

Loss carryforwards

(d) Deferred income tax assets - current
Deferred income tax liabilities - current

Net deferred income tax assets - current

(e) Deferred income tax assets — non-current
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January 1 to January 1 to
June 30, 2003 June 30, 2002
$- $-
1,071 (1,438)
(1,071) (1,438)
1,071 1,438
112,466 -
(32,230) -
(116,564) (98,249)
$(36,328) $(98.,249)

June 30, 2003

June 30, 2002

$(565,107)

$(350,837)

$623.,671

$588,129

$(1,252,294)

$(1,401,017)

(913,391) -
81,649 221,780

(94,740) (2,331)
286,496 532,683
1,267,053 -
$20,412 $321,787

- (583)
$20,412 $321,204
$603,259 $266,342



(565,107) (350,254)
$38,152 $(83,912)

Deferred income tax liabilities - non-current

Net deferred income tax assets (Jiabilities) -
non-current '

(3) Corporate income tax returns filed by the Company through 2000 have been assessed by the

National Tax Administration.

(4) Imputation tax credit:

June 30, 2003 June 30, 2002
Balance of imputation tax credit account (ICA) $40,595 $6,227
2003 2002
2.84% 0.53% '

Estimated (actual) tax credit rate for individual

stockholders

The above tax credit rate for individual stockholders is estimated for 2003 and actual for

2002.

(5) Unappropriated retained earnings:

June 30, 2003 June 30, 2002

1997 and before $4,103,552 $4,073,355
1998 and onwards 1,429,032 1,701,203
$5,532,584 $5,774,558

Total

The above unappropriated retained earnings are the cumulative unappropriated retained
earnings accounted for in accordance with the Business Accounting Law. Therefore, net

income for the six months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002 is not included.

(6)According to the related regulations, the funds invested in automation equipment,
computerization, research and development, staff training, and important investment
businesses are tax deductible. The governing regulations, deductible items, total deductible

amounts, remaining balances of the deductible amounts and the final deductible years are

summarized as follows:
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21.

Remaining

Total balance of Final
deductible deductible deductible

Regulation Deductible item amount amount year
Statute for Upgrading Important investment 241,200 233,610 2004
Industries, Article 8 business
Statute for Upgrading Research and development 16,999 16,999 2004
Industries, Article 6
Statute for Upgrading  Automation equipment 35,887 35,887 2004
Industries, Article 6
Total $294,086 $286,496

Basic eamings (loss) per share
January 1 to January 1 to

(In thousand shares)

Beginning balance of outstanding shares

Add: Capitalization of retained earnings for 2003
Add: Capitalization of retained earnings for 2002

Weighted average number of outstanding shares

Income (loss) before income taxes

Net income (loss)

Basic earnings (loss) per share (in dollars)

Income (loss) before income taxes

Net income (loss)

E. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

1.

Names of the related parties and their relationship with the Company:

Related parties

June 30, 2003

June 30, 2002

2,104,782 2043478

42,096 42,096

i 61,304

2,146,878 2,146,878

$192,010 $(475,303)

$228,338 $(377,054)
$0.09 $(0.22)
$0.11 $(0.18)

Relationship with the Company

Evergreen International S. A. (EIS)

Taiwan Terminal Services Co., Ltd. (TTSC)
Peony Investment S. A. (PEONY)
Evergreen International Storage & Transport
Corp. (EITC)
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Subsidiary of the Company
Subsidiary of the Company

Major stockholder of the Company

Investee company accounted for by the equity method



Uniglory Marine Corporation (UGMC) (Note 1) Investee company accounted for by the equity method

EVA Airways Corporation (EVA) Investee company accounted for by the equify method
Ever Reward Logistic Corporation (ERLC) Investee company accounted for by the equity method
Evergreen Security Co., Ltd (ESRC) Investee company accounted for by the equity method
Charng Yang Development Co., Ltd. (CYD) Investee company accounted for by the equity method

Evervoyage Transport Co., Ltd. (ETC) (Note 2) Investee company of the Company’s major stockholder
Evergreen Konoike Construction Corporation  Investee company of the Company’s major stockholder
(EKCC)

Evergreen International Corporation (EIC) Investee company of the Company’s major stockholder
Evergreen State Transport Co., Ltd. Investee company of the Company’s major stockholder
Evergreen Star Transport Co., Ltd. Investee company of the Company’s major stockholder
Evergreen Airline Service Corporation (EAS)  Investee company of the Company’s major stockholder
Tai Wha Checker Co., Ltd. Indirect subsidiary of the Company
Vigor Enterprise S. A. (VIGOR) Indirect subsidiary of the Company
Hatsu Marine Limited (HML) Indirect subsidiary of the Company
PT. Multi Bina Transport (MBT) Indirect subsidiary of the Company
Greencompass Marine S. A.(GMS) Indirect subsidiary of the Company

Evergreen Heavy Industrial Co., (Malaysia) Indirect subsidiary of the Company
Sdn. Bhd. (EHIC(M))

Taranto Container Termunal S. P. A. (TCT) Investee of Peony
Lloyd Triestino Di Navigazione S. P. A. (LT) Investee of Peony
Evergreen Container Terminal (Thailand) Investee of Peony
(ECTT)

Gaining Enterprise S. A. (GESA) Investee of EITC

Note 1: UGMC has been dissolved due to the merger with EITC on November 1, 2002.
Note 2: ETC has been dissolved due to the merger with EITC on May 1, 2003.

2. Major transactions with related parties:
(1) Operating revenues from related parties:

January 1 to June 30, 2003  January 1 to June 30, 2002

% of total % of total

operating operating

Amount revenues Amount revenues
EIC $2,488,494 15.27 $238,950 3.48
LT 352,348 2.16 341,077 4.97
HML 46,143 0.28 12,615 0.19
EITC 24,986 0.16 1,835 0.03
GMS 21,023 0.13 36,416 0.53
EIS 19,797 0.12 37,321 0.54
UGMC - - 327,030 4.76
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EVA - - 134 ;
EKCC - - 11 :

Total $2,952,791 18.12 $995,389 14.50

The terms on the above transactions with related parties are not materially different from

those with non-related parties.

(2) Expenditures on services rendered:

January 1 to June 30, 2003  January 1 to June 30,2002

% of total % of total
costs & costs &
operating operating
: Amount expenses Amount expenses
EITC $1,108,218 6.30 $120,488 1.67
GESA 1,053,383 5.99 - -
LT 674,664 3.84 234,494 3.25
TTSC 289,307 1.64 113,412 1.57
GMS ' 282,681 1.61 - -
EIC 128,789 0.73 36,046 0.50
EIS 57,433 0.33 - -
Tai Wha Checker Co., Ltd. 57,088 0.32 - -
Evergreen State Transport Co., Ltd. 31,865 0.18 14,636 0.20
Evergreen Star Transport Co., Ltd. 22,428 0.13 11,876 0.17
ESRC 20,793 0.12 20,211 0.28
EAS 2,147 0.01 2,328 0.03
EVA 1,443 0.01 1,439 0.02
CYD 7 - - -
UGMC - - 226,675 3.14
ETC - - 2,444 0.04
Total A $3,730,246 21.21 $784,049 10.87

The terms on the above transactions with related parties are not materially different from

those with non-related parties.
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(3) Property exchange:
A. Fixed assets

(a) Purchases from related parties

January 1 to June 30, January 1 to June 30,

Properties 2003 2002
EHIC(M) Transportation equipment — $205,671 $88,718
containers
VIGOR  Transportation equipment — 113,450 _ 92,401
containers
EKCC Dock facilities - 1,000
Total $319,121 $182,119

In line with the Company’s operational requirements and its plan to adjust the supply of
containers, the Company’s Board resolved to purchase the above transportation
equipment — containers under the contracts signed with EHIC(M) and VIGOR for
manufacturing of containers. Payments were made at the end of the month following
delivery of containers. All payments had been made as of June 30, 2003. Please refer to
Notes ES and G for details.

(b) Sales to related parties

January 1 to June 30 2003 January 1 to June 30 2003
Properties Selling price Gain (Loss) Selling price Gain (Loss)
GMS Ships and $1,136,101 $- $- $-
equipment
LT Transportation 451 402 - -
equipment
EIC Office equipment 26 - - -
EITC Computer 18 (128) - -
equipment
Total $1,136,596 $274 $- $-

In line with the rearrangement of the Company’s shipping lines and fleet, the Board
resolved to sell its ships, EVER GOODS, EVER GAINING, EVER GIVEN, EVER
GUEST and EVER GENERAL, to GMS on March 11, 2003. The proceeds will be
collected six months after the delivery of ships. As of June 30, 2003, no payments were
received. The outstanding amount is recorded as other receivables.

B. Long-term investments

(a)_Purchases from related parties

January 1 to June 30,  January 1 to June 30,

Item 2003 2002

EVA 5,000 shares of convertible bond $500,000

$-
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On June 5, 2003, the Company’s Board resolved to purchase the above convertible
bonds issued by EVA. Payments on the bonds were paid up as of June 30, 2003.

(b) Sales to related parties

January 1 to June 30, 2003 January 1 to June 30, 2002
Item Selling Price Gain Selling Price Gain

EITC 493,000 shares common 5
stock of ERLC $6,252 $85 $- $-

Proceeds from the above sale were all received as of June 30, 2003.
(4) Lease

1) Rental income (which is recorded as non-operating income) from the operating
premises and parking lots leased to related parties is as follows:

January 1 to January 1 to

June 30,2003 June 30, 2002
% of total % of total
rental rental
Items Amount income Amount income
EIC Office buildings $20,331 71.29 $9,200 44.43
and container yards
TTSC Container yards 1,638 5.74 160 0.77
EVA Office buildings 1,418 4.97 1,418 6.85
and container yards
Tai Wha Container yards 347 1.22 203 0.98
Checker Co.,
Lid.
EITC Container yards 4,105 14.39 15 0.07
and warehouses
Total $27,839 97.61 $10,996 53.10

2) Rental expenses (which are recorded as general and administrative expenses) on
operating premises, parking lots and equipment leased from related parties are as

follows:
January 1 to January 1 to
. June 30, 2003 June 30, 2002
% of total % of total
Items Amount rental Amount rental

expenses expenses
EIC Office Buildings $14,413 91.63 $14,619 92.60
EITC Office Building 1,164 7.40 583 3.69

and reefer chassis
Total $15,577 99.03 $15,202 96.29
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3) The Company has succeeded the inshore marine freight business of UGMC and
GESA. Due to this operation expansion, the Company rents vessels from related
parties and the rental expenses are as follows:

January 1 to June 30, 2003

% of total
Amount rental expenses
GESA $1,039,588 36.17
EITC 440,799 15.34
Total $1,480,387 51.51

(5) Accounts receivable from and accounts payable to related parties (No interest is
charged except for GMS):

June 30, 2003 June 30, 2002

% of account % of account

Amount balance Amount balance
Accounts receivable:
EIC $254,362 9.71 $- -
UGMC - - 21,659 1.09
Total $254,362 9.71 $21,659 1.09
Other receivables:
GMS $1,151,723 45.13 $579,707 26.79
EITC 175,239 6.87 48,578 2.25
EVA 120,887 4.74 330 0.02
EIC 45,993 1.80 8,692 0.40
EIS 22,826 0.89 28,643 1.32
TTSC 287 0.01 586 0.03
Tai Wha Checker
Co., Lid. 89 ) - )
ESRC 19 - 13 -
UGMC - - 147,386 6.81
HML - - 12,759 0.59
LT - - 735,802 34.01
Total $1,517,063 59.44 $1,562,496 72.22
Notes pavable:
EITC $255 1.10 $- -
EVA 4 0.02 384 2.22
Total $259 1.12 $384 2.22
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Accounts payable:
EITC $244,663 16.23 $109,343 177

TTSC 51,754 3.43 47,149 5.08
EIC 45,325 3.01 15,039 1.62
Evergreen State 31,903 2.12 22,421 241
Transport Co., Ltd.

Evergreen Star 16,561 1.10 - 17,457 1.88
Transport Co., Ltd.

Tai Wha Checker 8,982 0.59 - -
Co., Ltd.

ESRC 3,592 0.24 3,540 - 0.38
EVA 250 0.02 331 0.03
EAS 1 - 377 0.04
UGMC - - 37,735 4.06
ETC - - 899 0.10
Total $403,031 26.74 $254,291 27.37

Other pavables:

EIC $1,658 031 $- -
GMS - 1,372 0.25 - -
EIS 822 0.15 1,134 0.15
HML 239 0.04 - -
LT 143 0.02 143 0.02

Total $4,234 0.77 $1,277 0.17

3. Financing activities with related parties:

The Company’s related party, Greencompass Marine S.A., requested for financing from the
Company for operation expansion and working capital requirement. The request was
approved by the Board of Directors according to the Company’s lending policy. As of June
30, 2003 an 2002, the balance of the loans amounted to US$0 and US$16,500 thousand,
translated into NT$0 and NT$553,740 thousand, respectively, with an interest rate of SIBOR
plus 40 basis points. The interest income for the six months ended 2003 and 2002 amounted
to US$17,450 thousand and US$4,853 thousand, respectively. As of June 30, 2003 and 2002,
interests receivable amounted to US$571 thousand and US$170 thousand (translated into
NT$19,700 thousand and NT$5,674 thousand), respectively.

4. Endorsements and guarantees for related parties:

Endorsements and guarantees issued by the Company for related parties were as follows (in
$°000):

June 30, 2003 June 30, 2002
GMS USD 768,983 USD 915,463
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PEONY UsD
ECTT USD
TCT ITL

TCT EUR
HML USD
HML GBP

. Major contracts with related parties:

100,600
5,811
60,000,000
47,909
98,732
110,016

USD 102,750
USD 5,811
ITL 60,000,000
EUR 26,009
USD 160,963
GBP -

(1) There was a contract of management and consulting service between the Company and
EIC. Fees were charged on an hourly basis or actual expenses incurred. The contract

is effective from July 1, 1995 and is renewed once a year.

(2) The Company has an agency contract with EIC to act as an agent and conduct for
canvassing shipping business, collection of freight and advanced payment of ports
fees. Other receivables were $45,993 thousand and $8,692 thousand as of June 30,

2003 and 2002.

(3) The Company has agency contracts with related parties to pay petty cash on vessels ,
crew salaries and insurance premiums in Taiwan. The debit balances of the agent
reciprocal account as of June 30, 2003 and 2002 are as follows:

EIS
GMS
GESA
LT
HML
Total

June 30, 2003

June 30, 2002

$7.315 $14,662
12,336 10,077
8,769 -

- 7

1,698 662
$30,118 $25.408

(4) The Company has agency contracts with related parties as overseas agents to handle the
Company’s dealings with foreign ports such as port formalities, cargo loading,
discharging and forwarding, collection of freight and advance payment of expenses. As
of June 30, 2003 and 2002, the balances of the agency account before deducting the

unrealized gain on foreign currency exchange are as follows:

@ Debits of agent accounts:

EIS
GMS
GESA
LT
HML
Total

June 30, 2003

June 30, 2002

$- $1,676,730
3,251,206 1,277,394
372,314 -
2,608,852 428,046
22,343 53,276
$6,254,715 $2,835,446
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@ Credits of agent accounts

EIS

June 30, 2003

June 30, 2002

$611,853

$-

(5) In line with the Company’s operational requirement and its plan to adjust the supply of
containers, on April 2, 2003, the Board resolved to purchase containers (recorded under
transportation equipment) under the contracts signed with the related parties for
manufacturing of containers. Details as of June 30, 2003 were as follows:

Terms of contracts

Containers delivered

Container undelivered

Volume Volume Volume
(Teu) Total Price (Teu) Price (Teu) Price
EHIC(M) 10,000 USD13,675 3,380 USD4,650 6,620 USD9,025
VIGOR 10,000 11,912 2,200 2,570 7,800 9.342
Total USD25,587 USD7,220

USD18,367

All of the containers purchased under the above-mentioned contracts are scheduled to
be delivered by the end of 2003. The payments are required to be paid at the end of the
month following the delivery of containers.

F. ASSETS PLEDGED

1. Loneg-term eqguity investments

Dongbu Pusan Container Terminal Co. Ltd.

2. Property, plant and equipment

Book Value

June 30, 2003

June 30, 2002

$40,041

$-

Book Value

Loan Type

Long-term loans
Long-term loans

Long-term loans

Long-term loans
Long-term loans and

corporate bonds

June 30, 2003 June 30, 2002
Land $1,800,093 $1,800,093
Buildings 1,028,284 1,053,938
Loading and-discharging
. 853,517 1,081,701

equipment
Transportation equipment 1,358,866 382,819
Shi d equi t

ps anc eqiipmen 779,398 2.478,491
Total $5,820,158 $6,797,042
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3. Restricted current assets

June 30, June 30,
2003 2002 Pledgee Purpose
Certificate of deposit $130,000 $135,000 Kaohsiung Harbor Performance
Bureau bond
Certificate of deposit 3,500 2,750 Military — Finance Performance
Department bond
Certificate of deposit 3.000 3.000 Tai-Power Performance
bond
Certificate of deposit 800 200 Keelung Customs Performance
Bureau bond
Certificate of deposit 50 50 Directorate General of Performance
Customs bond
Certificate of deposit Keelung Customs Performance
- 250
Bureau bond
Total $137.,350 $141,850
4. Restricted non-current assets
June 30, June 30,
2003 2002 Pledgee
Certificate of deposit $339.000 $- ICRC
Certificate of deposit 16,817 13,484 Commission of European
Communities
Certificate of deposit 9.870 16,580 Artesia Bank
Total $365,687 $30,064

G COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

1. Details of the letters of credit (I./C) issued by banks on behalf of the Company are as follows:

(in $°000)
L/C amount
June 30, June 30,
Guarantor 2003 2002

ABN-AMRO Bank USD - USD -
Bank of America USD 1,700 USD 5,658
Bank of America EUR 426 EUR 407
Citibank USD 2 USD -
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2. Endorsements and guarantees issued by the Company for third parties are as follows: (in
$°000)

Companies receiving guarantee June 30, 2003 June 30, 2002
GMS USD 768,983  USD \ 915,463
ECTT USD 5,811  USD 5,811
PEONY USD 100,600 USD 102,750
TCT ITL 60,000,000 ITL 60,000,000
TCT EUR 47,909 EUR 26,009
HML USD 98,732 USD 160,963
HML GBP 110,016  GBP -
Istand Equipment LL.C USD 10,683 USD -

3. Evergreen International S. A., the original stockholder of the Company, sold some of its
shares through issuance of global depository receipts (GDR). The issuance of GDRs was
approved by the SEC on June 19, 1996 as per the letter (85)Tai-Cai-Zheng (1) No. 35410.
On August 2, 1996, the GDRs were listed on the London Stock Exchange with the approval
from the governing authority in U.K. The places of issuance were Asia, Europe and the US.
The initial number of issued units was 5,449,592, representing 54,495,920 shares of the
Company’s common stock and the total issued amount was US$115 million at NT$50.50 per
share. The number of supplementary issued units was 817,438 and the total GDRs issued
amounted to US$115 million, representing 62,670,300 shares of the Company’s common
stock at NT$50.50 per share. Another 1,885,943 units, representing 18,859,461 shares of the
Company’s common stock, were issued during the period from 1997 to June 30, 2003. As of
June 30, 2003, 5,676,327 units were redeemed and 2,476,646 units, representing 24,766,491
shares of the Company’s common stock, were outstanding.

4. The Company was indicted for the disputes on processing of freight and bills of lading. The
lawsuit was referred to the lawyer. As of June 30, 2003, the maximum amounts of
compensation were NT$3,628 thousand and US$184 thousand, respectively. As the case was
not yet finalized, it was difficult to estimate the amounts of compensation and thus,
provision for the losses was not made.

5. In March 1991, the Company and the other 14 marine companies formed a union named
FETTCSA with the aim of setting an accord on freight charges and other additional charges
for Far European routes. The union was penalized a fine of EUR368 thousand by the
Commission of European Communities (CEC) in 1992 as CEC considered that the union
intended to monopolize the freight charges. The Company and the other union members did
not agree with the charge and filed a lawsuit with the European Court in Luxemburg. To
protect their rights, CEC requested the Company to issue a letter of credit with the same
amount of the penalty and pledge time deposits as collaterals during the trial period.

6. As of June 30, 2003, details of the contracts entered into by the Company to purchase

containers to meet the Company’s operational requirement and adjust the supply of
containers are as follows:
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Terms of contracts Containers delivered  Containers undelivered

Volume Volume Volume
(Tew) Total Price (Teuw) Price {Ten) Price

EHIC(M) 10,000 USD13,675 3,380 USD4,650 6,620  USD9,025
VIGOR 10,000 11,912 2200 2,570 7,800 9,342
China
International
Marine 10,000 11,898 1,000 1,168 9,000 10,730
Containers
(Group) Co.,
Ltd.
Total USD37,485 USDS8,388 USD29,097

All of the containers are scheduled to be delivered by the end of 2003. Payments on the
containers are required to be made at the end of the month following the delivery of
containers.

7. To meet the Company’s cash requirements for repayments of medium-term loans and reduce
interest cost, in June 2003, the Company’s Board resolved to issue its first zero coupon
unsecured domestic convertible bonds of $4 billion for a period of 5 years in the second half
2003. The bonds are proposed to be listed on the OTC market and will be issued at par.
During the 30-day period prior to the end of the third year, the bondholders may execute
their right to resell the bonds at an annual yield of 0.2%. The interest premium is computed
at 0.6% of the face value, compounded annually. The bonds will be redeemed at maturity
based on the face value.

8. The Company schedules to subscribe Peony’s shares issued due to capital increase, totally
$1 billion in December 2003.

H. SIGNIFICANT DISASTER LOSSES

None.

I SIGNIFICANT SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In July, 2003, the Company invested $160 million in Taipei Port Container Terminal Corp.,
representing 20% of equity interest, and subscribed the shares of Central Reinsurance

Corporation issued due to capital increase, totaling $49,062 thousand.
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J. OTHER

1. Denvative financial instruments

(1) The contract amount (nominal principal amount) and credit risk (in $°000)

June 30, 2003 June 30, 2002
Financial Nominal principal Nominal principal
instruments (Contract amount)  Credit risk (Contract amount) Credit risk

Interest rate swap  EUR 25,000 - USD 24,000 -

NTD 2,384,000 - NTD 1,500,000 -
Cross currency NTD 1,216,250 - - -
swap
Foreign exchange  USD 67,000 - - -
option EUR 3,000 - - -

JPY 347,000 - - -
Oil swap USD 4,250 - USD 8,548 -

The above credit nisk represents the possible loss that will be incurred by the Company in
the event that the counter-parties default. The counter-parties of the Company are all

credible banks and thus, credit risk is assessed to be remote.
(2) Market risk

Interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps, foreign exchange options and oil swaps are
used to hedge against fluctuations in interest rates, exchange rates and oil prices and

thus, the market risk is offset against each other.
(3) Liquidity risk, and the amount, timing and uncertainty of future cash requirements

The Company’s working capital is assessed to be adequate and thus, there is no funding
risk. In addition, the interest rates, exchange rates and prices are fixed. Therefore, cash

flow risk is remote.
(4) The strategy of holding derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are used for non-trading purposes. Interest rate swaps ,
cross currency swaps and foreign exchange options are used to hedge against

fluctuations in interest rates and exchange rates, whereas oil swaps are used to hedge
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fluctuations 1in oil prices and control the cost within tolerable limits. The aim of the

hedging strategy is to hedge most of the market risk.
(5) Disclosure of derivative financial instruments on financial statements
a. Interest rate swaps:

Contracts are settled based on the differential between the spot interest rate and

contract interest rate, which is charged to interest expense on vessels.

b. Cross currency swaps:

The Company records the difference between the spot exchange rate and the contract

rate as exchange gain/loss at maturity.

c. Foreign exchange options:
The Company has actual position on derivative financial instruments. Full
settlements are conducted at expiration. Difference between the spot exchange rate
and contract rate 1s charged to exchange gain / loss.

d. O1l swaps:
Contracts are settled based on the difference between the spot oil price and the
contract price, which is charged to fuel expense.

(6) Financial instruments held to hedge the commitments for expected transactions

Oil swaps are used to fix the oil price within tolerable limit for future oil usage.

2. Fair value of financial instruments

June 30, 2003 June 30, 2002
Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
Non-derivative financial instruments value value
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $1,572,822 $1,572,822 $1,222,749  $1,222,749
Short-term investments 323,044 336,038 1,364,308 1,364,308
Notes and accounts receivable 5,172,303 5,172,303 4,146,949 4,146,949
Long-term equity investments 40,168,742 40,284,954 34,318,515 34,376,596
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Long-term bond investments
Guarantee deposits paid

Restricted assets

Liabilities
Short-term loans
Short-term notes and bills
payable
Notes and accounts payable
Corporate bonds payable
(including current portion)
Long-term loans (including
current portion)

Guarantee deposits received

Derivative financial instruments

Interest rate swap
Cross currency swap
Foreign exchange option”

Oil swap

500,000
39,514
503,037

2,257,165

1,149,644

3,929,121
10,220,000

11,844,181

85

524,350
39,514
503,037

2,257,165
1,149.644

3,929,121
10,220,000

11,844,181
85
USD(2,713)
USD35

USD(194)
USD435

51,334
171,914

6,492,313
1,349,788

3,792,539
11,220,000

6,492,313

513 ..

171,9
6,4923
1,349,7:

3,792,5
11,220,06

6,4923

(4144

(35,9
(3.3t

i

The methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values of the Company’s financial

instruments are summarized below.

(1) Fair values of the short-term financial instruments are estimated to be equal to their

carrying values. As maturity of these instruments is short, it is reasonable that their fair

values equal their carrying values. This method is applied to cash and cash equivalents,

notes and accounts receivable, guarantee deposits paid, restricted assets, short-term loans,

short-term notes and bills payable, notes and accounts payable and guarantee deposits

received.

(2) Fair values of marketable securities equal the quoted market prices, if available. If the

quoted market prices are not available, fair values are estimated using financial

information or other information.

(3) Fair values of long-term loans are estimated based on the present values of future cash

flows. The discount rate is based on the interest rate of a similar long-term loan with

similar maturity.

(4) Fair values of corporate bonds payable equal the quoted market prices, if available. If the
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quoted market prices are not available, fair values are estimated using financial

information or other information.

(5) Fair values of derivative financial instruments are estimated to be equal to the amount
that should be received or paid if the contracts are settled at the balance sheet date.
Unrealized gains / losses on the outstanding contracts are normally included in the
estimation. Quoted prices from the financial institutions are used as a reference for

estimation of the derivative financial instruments’ fair values.

3. To facilitate comparison between the financial statements for the six months ended 2003 and

2002, some of the accounts were reclassified.

K. SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES

1. Information on major trade events
(1) Loans to third parties as of June 30, 2003: Please see Table 5.

(2) Endorsements and guarantees provided to third parties as of June 30, 2003: Please see
Table 6.

(3) Ending balance of marketable securities held by the Company as of June 30, 2003:
Please see Table 7.

(4) Cumulative buying or selling of one specific security exceeding the lower of NT$100

million or 20 percent of the Company’s capital stock: Please see Table 8.

(5) Acquisition of real estate properties with an amount exceeding the lower of NT$100

million or 20 percent of the Company’s capital stock: Please see Table 9.

(6) Disposal of real estate properties with an amount exceeding the lower of NT$100

million or 20 percent of the Company’s capital stock: Please see Table 10.

(7) Purchases from or sales to related parties exceeding the lower of NT$100 million or 20

percent of the Company’s capital stock: Please see Table 11.

(8) Receivables from related parties exceeding the lower of NT$100 million or 20 percent of
the Company’s capital stock: Please see Table 12.

(9) Financial derivative transactions: Please see Notes J1 and J2.
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2. Information on the investees

(1) Disclosure of the information on the investees over which the Company can directly or
indirectly exercise significant influence or in which the Company has controlling power:
Please see Tables 13, 13-1 and 13-2.

(2) Disclosure of the major trade events engaged in by the investees in which the Company
has direct or indirect controlling power:

(a) Loans to third parties as of June 30, 2003: Please see Table 5-1.

(b) Endorsements and guarantees provided to third parties as of June 30, 2003: Please
see Table 6-1.

"(c) Ending balance of marketable securities held by the investees as of June 30, 2003:
Please see Table 7-2.

(d) Cumulative buying or selling of one specific security exceeding the lower of

NT$100 million or 20 percent of the respective investee’s capital stock: None.

(e) Acquisition of real estate properties with an amount exceeding the lower of NT$100

million or 20 percent of the respective investee’s capital stock: None.

(f) Disposal of real estate properties with an amount exceeding the lower of NT$100
million or 20 percent of the respective investee’s capital stock: None.

(g) Purchases from or sales to related parties exceeding the lower of NT$100 million or
20 percent of the respective investee’s capital stock: None.

(h) Receivables from related parties exceeding the lower of NT$100 million or 20
percent of the respective investee’s capital stock: Please see Table 12.

(1) Denvative financial instruments: None.
3. Information on Mainland China investments

(1) Names of the investees in Mainland China and their core businesses, capital stock,
investment methods, funds remitted in / out, percentage of ownership, investment gains /
losses, ending balances of the investments’ book values, investment gains remitted back

to Taiwan and quota of investments in Mainland China: Please see Table 14.
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(2) Direct or indirect transactions with the related parties in Mainland China:
(a) Amounts and percentages of purchases and related payables: None.
(b) Amounts and percentages of sales and related receivables: None.
(c) Amounts of property exchange and the resulting gains / losses: None.
(d) Endorsements and guarantees for notes and bills, and collaterals pledged: None.

(e) The highest and ending balances of financing, the associated interest rates and total

interest expenses for the current period: None.

(f) Other transactions with significant influence on the current gains / losses or financial

conditions, such as services provided or received: None.

L. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Not applicable to the interim financial statements.
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Evergreen Marine Corporation (Taiwan) Ltd.
Summary of Terms on Corporate Bonds

June 30, 2003

Table 1
Type of corporate bonds Fifth unsecured corporate bonds Sixth secured corporate bonds
Date of issuance A Bonds: Dec. 14, 1998 ~ Dec. 29, 1998 July 15, 1999
B Bonds: Dec. 14, 1998 ~ Dec. 23, 1998
Face value NT$1,000,000 NT$1,000,000
Place of issuance None None
Issue price Markgt price Market price
Total issued amount NT$1,000,000,000 NT$2,500,000,000
Interest rate B Bonds : 7.00% 6.02%
Period 5 years 5 years
Maturity Dec. 23, 2003 July 15, 2004
Guarantor None Taiwan Cooperative Bank
Intemmaitonal Commercial Bank of China
First Commercial Bank
Bank of Taiwan
Trustee Taipei Bank Taipei Bank
Underwriter Grand Cathay Securities Corp. Capital Securities Corp.
Lawyer Chens Law and Patent Office Chens Law and Patent Office

Certified public accountant

J.T.Lai & Co., CPAs

J. T.Lai & Co., CPAs

Principal repayment

Principals of A and B bonds are both repaid
at maturity based on the face value.

Principals of A, B, C and D bonds are all
repaid at maturity based on the face value.

Interest payment

Interest is paid annually.

Interest is paid semi-annually.

Balance of unpaid principal NT$720,000,000 NT$2,500,000,000
Clause on redemption or early prepayment None None
Restricted clause None None




Evergreen Marine Corporation (Taiwan) Ltd.

Summary of Terms on Corporate Bonds

June 30, 2003

Table 2

Type of corporate bonds

Seventh secured corporate bonds

Eighth secured corporate bonds

Date of issuance

November 9, 2000

December 13, 2001

Face value

NT$1,000,000

NT$1,000,000

Place of issnance

None

None

Issue price

Market price

Market price

Total issued amount

NT$1,500,000,000

NT$1,500,000,000

Interest rate 5.145% 2.600%
Period 5 years 5 years
Maturity November 9, 2005 December 13, 2006
Guarantor Chiao Tung Bank Taiwan Cooperative Bank
Taiwan Cooperative Bank Bank of Taiwan
Taipei Bank
Trustee Bank of Taiwan United World Chinese Commercial Bank
Underwriter Fuh-Hwa Securities Co., Ltd. Polaris Securities Corp.
Lawyer Chens Law and Patent Office Chens Law and Patent Office

Certified public accountant

Diwan, Emst & Young

Diwan, Emst & Young

Principal repayment

Principals of A, B and C bonds are all
repaid at maturity based on the face value.

Principals of A and B bonds are both
repaid at maturity based on the face value.

Interest payment

Interest is paid annually.

Interest is paid annually.

Balance of unpaid principal

NT$1,500,000,000

NT$1,500,000,000

Clause on redemption or early prepayment

None

None

Restricted clause

None

None




Evergreen Marine Corporation (Taiwan) Ltd.

Summary of Terms on Corporate Bonds

June 30, 2003

Table 3

Type of corporate bonds

Ninth secured corporate bonds

Tenth secured corporate bonds

Date of issuance

May 14, 2002 ~ May 17, 2002

June 13, 2002 ~ June 20, 2002

Face value NT$1,000,000 NT$1,000,000
Place of issuance None None
Issue price Market price Market price
Total issued amount NT$1,000,000,000 . NT$1,500,000,000 »
Interest rate 3.400% 3.900%
Period 5 years 5 years
Maturity May 14, 2007 ~ May 17, 2007 June 13, 2007 ~ June 20, 2007
Guarantor Hua Nan Commercial Bank Bank of Taiwan
Trustee Bank of Taiwan United World Chinese Commercial Bank
Underwriter
National Investment Trust Co., Ltd. National Investment Trust Co., Ltd.
KGI KGI
Yuanta Core Pacific Securities

Lawyer Chens Law and Patent Office Chens Law and Patent Office

Certified public accountant

Diwan, Emst & Young

Diwan, Ernst & Young

Principal repayment

Principals of A, B, C and D bonds are all
repaid at maturity based on the face value.

Principals of A, B, C, D, E and F bonds
are all repaid at maturity based on the face
value.

Interest payment

Interest is paid annually.

Interest is paid annually.

Balance of unpaid principal

NT$1,000,000,000

NT$1,500,000,000

Clause on redemption or early prepayment

None

None

Restricted clause

None

None




Evergreen Marine Corporation (Taiwan) Ltd.
Summary of Terms on Corporate Bonds

June 30, 2003

Table 4

Type of corporate bonds

Eleventh secured corporate bonds

Date of issuance

A Bonds: June 2, 2003 ~ June 6, 2003

B Bonds: June 3, 2003~ June 5, 2003

Face value NT$5,000,000
Place of issuance None
Issue price Market price

Total issued amount

NT$1,500,000,000

Interest rate

A Bonds:1.47%

B Bonds:4%-LIBOR of June

Period 5 years
Maturity June 2, 2008 ~ June 6, 2008
Guarantor Bank of Taiwan
Land Bank

Trustee Internaitonal Commercial Bank of China
Underwriter Fuh-Hwa Securities Co., Ltd.

Citi Securities Corp.
Lawyer Chens Law and Patent Office

Certified public accountant

Diwan, Emst & Young

Principal repayment

Principals of A and B bonds are all repaid at maturity based on
the face value.

Interest payment

A bonds Interestis paid annually.

B bonds Interest is paid semi-annually.

Balance of unpaid principal

NT$1,500,000,000

Clause on redemption or early prepayment

None

Restricted clause

None
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April 2002

Schedule 10

AVS NO

SCHEDULE 10

NOTIFICATION OF MAJOR INTERESTS IN SHARES

558875

All relevant boxss should be completed in block capital lefters,

1. Name of company 2. Nama of shareholdar having 2 major inlerest
ICAP plc FIDELITY INVESTMENTS

3. Please state whether nolification indicates that It Is in respect | 4. Name of the registered holder(s) and, If more than one

of holding of the sharehalder named in 2 abave or in respect holdar, tha aumbar of sharas heald by each of them

of a non-deneficial interast or in the case of an individual

helder If It Iz a holding of that pargon’s spousse or children

under the ags of 18

SEE ATTACHED LETTER SEE ATTACHED LETTER

5. Number of 6. Percantags of 7. Number of 8. Percantage of

sharas/amount of issued class sharas/amount of issyed class

stock acquired stock disposed

1,012,533 0.88% N/A N/A
9, Class of sacurity 10. Date of transaction 11, Dale compeny informed
ORDINARY SHARES OF 50P EACH 20.10.03 22.10.03
12. Tom! halding {olilowing this notification 13. Totzl pereentage holding of issued class following this
notification
68,911,452 6.00%
14.  Any additiona) intormation 15. Nama aof contact and telephons number Tor quenes
KATHRYN DICKINSON
020 7000 5782

16. Name and signalure of AQTonsea company officlal responsible for making this notficaton

'a%a_a‘

Date of notification 22 Qctober 2003

KATHRYN DICKINSON
DEPUTY COMPANY SECRETARY

///C\\&

A NN
,{Q{,@/tzzﬁ:mw;ﬁ\%‘ﬁ;\

P RN
Company Annauncements Office, Old Broad Street, Londen EC2N 1HP e \\
Fassimile: 020 7588 6057, 020 7334 8954/8866/8966 (PLEASE DO NOT POST) * 0CT 2 2003 O >
Enguires: Company Monncring ana Enquires; UK Listing Authority 2 7

%
S
&
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Fidelnty % Investments-

October 20, 2003

ICAP Pic

2™ Floor

Park House

16 Finsbury Circus
London, EC2M 7UR
United Kingdom

FAX: 011-44-207-374-6743
ATTN: Company Secretary
Dear Sirs,

Enclosed are amended notifications of disclosablc interests under the UK.
Companics Act 1985. Please note that while this information derails the disclosable
interests of more than one entity, the enclosed disclosure constitutes separate notifications
of interest which have been combined solely for purposes of clarity and cfficiency. Itis
not intended to indicate that any of these entities act as a group or in concert with respect
to these interests.

These disclosures are made in the interest of conformity with the Companies Act.
The Intcrest detailed herein were acquired solely for investment purposes. For disclosure
purposes, holdings should be represented as FMR Corp. and its direct and indirect
subsidiaries, and Fidelity International Limited (FIL) and its direct and indirect
subsidiaries, both being non-bencficial holders.

If you have any qucstions please contact Eleanor Chemlen at (617) 563-1416 or
by FAX (617) 476-0363.

@dest regards,
Eleanor Chemlen
Sr. Compliance Specialist

Fidelity Monagoment 82 Dsvonshire Strest Phoner&17 563-7000
& Recoarch Cempany Boston, MA 02109-3614




~

Fidelity % Investments:

Amendment #3
NOTIFICATIO NS 198 TO 202 - - U.K. COMPANIES ACT
1. Company in which shares are held: ICAP Pic
2. Notifiable Interest: Ordinary Shares
FMR Corp.

82 Devonshire Strect
Boston, MA 02109

Parent holding company of Fidelity Management & Research Company
(FMRCO), invcstment manager for US mutual funds, and Fidelity
Management Trust Company (FMTC), a US state chartercd bank which
acts as a trustee or mvestment manager of various pension and trust
accounts. (See Schedule A for listing of Rcgistered Shareholders and
their holdings).

Fidelity International Limited (FIL)
P.O. Box HM 670
Hamilton HMCX, Bermuda

Parent holding company for various direct and indirect subsidiaries,
including Fidelity Investment Services Ltd. (FISL) and Fidelity Pension
Management (FPM), investment managers for various non-US investment
companies and institutional clients. (See Schedule A for

3. The notifiable interests also comprise the notifiable jnterest of:
Mzr. Edward C. Johnson 3d
82 Devonshire Sireet
Boston, MA 02109

Principal shareholder of FMR Corp. and Fidelity International Limited.
4. The notifiable interests include interest held on behalf of authorized unit trust

schemes in the U.K., notwithstanding the exemption from reporting pursuant to
Section 209 (1)(h) of the Companies Act 1985.

Fidality Managemsnt B2 Devonshire Street Phone: 617 563.7000
& Rescarch Company Boston, MA 02109.34614




- . -

Fidollity % Investmonts:

3. These notifications of disclosablc interests constitute separate notifications of interest
in the shares and are combined solely for the purposes of clarity and cfficiency.
Nothing hercin should be taken to indicate that FMR Corp. and its direct and indirect
subsidiaries, Fidelity International Limited and its direct and indirect subsidiaries or
Mr. Edward C. Johnson 3d act as a group or in concert in respect of the disclosed
interests, or that they are required to subrmit these notifications on a joint basis.

6. The disclosable interests arise under section 208 (4) (b) of the Act, namely where a
person, not being the registered holder, is entitled to exercise a right conferred by the
holding of the shares or to control the cxercisc of such rights, or under section 203 of

the Act respectively.

Co. Duly authonzed under Powers of
Attomney dated Scptember 30, 2003 by
Eric D. Roiter by and on behalf of FMR
Corp. and its direct and indirect
subsidiaries, and Fidelity Intemartional
Limited and its direct and indirect

subsidiarics.

Fidelity Managamant B2 Devonshirg Street Phene: 617 563-7000
8 Research Company Beston, MA 02105-3614




Schedule A

Amendment # 3
Security: ICAP Plc
MANAGEMENT
SHARES HELD COMPANY NOMINEE/REGISTERED NAME
{Ordinary Shares) '
101,450 FMRCO Mellon Bank
3,200 FMRCO HSBC
54,800 FMRCO ‘State Strect Nominces Limited
276,100 FMRCO Chase Nominees Limited
4,600 FMTC State Street Nominees Lid.
3,300 FMTC Brown Brotbers Harriman
2,500 FMTC State Street Bank & Trust
1.627.818 FISL Chase Nominees Lid
1,269,400 FISL Chase Manhattan Bank London
124,500, FPM Bankers Trust -
61,800 FPM Chase Nominees Ltd
71,000 FPM Nortrust Nominees Ltd
101,700 FPM Bank of New York'London
68,100 FPM Northern Trust
13,300 ' FPM : Deutsche Bank
27,800 FPM Citibank
52,400 FpM Mellon Nominees Ltd
100.650 FIL Chase Nominees Litd
406,534 FIL HSBC Clicnt Holdings Nominee (UK) Limitad
514,490 FIL Northern Trust
255,068 FIL Chase Manhauan Bank London
54,100 - FIL Deutche Bank
12,700 FIL Mellon Nomipees L1d
, 72,000 FIL Bank of Now York, Brussels
1,022,300 © FIL Bank of New York London
189,742 FIL Siate Streer Bank & Trost
84.900, FIL Citibank
223,700 FIL Clydesdale Bank (Head Officc) Nominees Limited
12,600 FIL JP Morgan
82.500 FIL " State Street Nominees Ltd
15,900 FIL . Bankers Trust
Total Ordinary Shares 6,011,452
Cuwrrent ownership percentage: % .o0 7,
Shares in jssue; 135-00Gmdeds 15, 135, 335
Change in holdings since last filing: +1,012,533 ordinary shares

T0TAL P.87




10/22/2003

FEDERAL EXPRESS

Securities and Exchange Commission
450 Fifth Street, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20549-0405

FILE NUMBER: 08204904

Re: ICAP plc - AVS No.: 558875

Ladies and Gentlemen:

On behalf of ICAP plc, in accordance with Rule 12g3-2(b) under the Securities
Exchange Act, we are furnishing with this letter the attached information that ICAP plc
has made public pursuant to the laws of England, has filed with the London Stock

Exchange or has distributed to its shareholders.

Please acknowledge receipt of this information by stamping the enclosed copy of
this letter and returning it to us in the enclosed stamped, self-addressed envelope.

RC:db
Enclosures

Very truly yours,

e pn C Cugliste

Roger C. Campbell
Senior Vice President &
General Counsel

ICAP North America Inc.
Harborside Financial Center
1100 Plaza Five, 12th Floor
Jersey City, NJ 07311-4996

Tel: 212 406 1100

wwwi.icap.com




& ICAP

10/22/2003

FEDERAL EXPRESS
Securities and Exchange Commission

450 Fifth Street, NN'W.
Washington, D.C. 20549-0405

FILE NUMBER: 08204904

Re: ICAP plc- AVS No.: 558875

Ladies and Gentlemen:

On behalf of ICAP plc, in accordance with Rule 12g3-2(b) under the Securities
Exchange Act, we are furnishing with this letter the attached information that ICAP plc
has made public pursuant to the laws of England, has filed with the London Stock
Exchange or has distributed to its shareholders. :

Please acknowledge receipt of this information by stamping the enclosed copy of
this letter and returning it to us in the enclosed stamped, self-addressed envelope.

Very truly yours,

(g pe € Cuglete

Roger C. Campbell
Senior Vice President &
General Counsel

RC:db

Enclosures
ICAP North America Inc.
Harborside Financial Center
1100 Plaza Five, 12th Floor
Jersey City, NJ 07311-4996

Tel: 212 406 1100

www.icap.com




W ICAP

22" October 2003

Company Announcements Office BY FAX NO:020 7588 6057

Old Broad Street
London
EC2N 1HP

Dear Sirs

ICAP plc - AVS No. 558875
Fidelity Investments

In accordance with Section 2.11 of the Listing Rules, please find attached a
Schedule 10 naotification in respect of a declaration received from Fidelity
Investments pursuant to an interest in shares held by Section 203(2) CA 1985.

Would you Kkindly confirm receipt of the announcement by telephoning Kathryn
Dickinson on 020 7000 5782.

o et

Kathryn Dickinson

Yours faithfully

Deputy Company Secretary
Enc: /x
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